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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1962

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Mr. HectorH Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-fype activitics,
each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons for the general fund and _
major special revenue funds of the City of Grants (the “City™), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We also have audited the
financial statements of each of the City’s nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and the budgetary comparisons
for the major capital project fund, major proprietary funds, and all nonmajor funds presented as supplementary -
information in the accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for the year ended June
30,2011, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards, generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of' material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and slgmﬁcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our andit prov1des a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present falrly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Grants, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons of the general fund and major special revenue
funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles genérally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental and nonmajor enterprise fund of the City of Grants.as -
of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thercof and the
respective budgetary comparisons for the major capital projects fund, major propriefary funds, and all nonmajor funds
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
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Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

Page Two

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2011 on our
consideration of the City of Grants’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not fo provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 11 is not a required part of the basic financial statements

‘but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consist principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements, and combining and
individual fund financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial statements. The Financial
‘Data Schedule (FDS) is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Grants. The
additional schedules listed as “other supplementary information™ in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

kgl sy 1o ~ Co, P.C.

Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.

November 30, 2011



CITY OF GRANTS _
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2011 '

As management of the City of Grants, we offer our residents and others who may read the City of Grants® financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Grants for fiscal year ended June 30,
2011.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
s The City’s total net assets increased over the course of this year’s operations.

e During the year the City’s expenses were $1,453,356 less than the $11,899,500 generated in taxes, other
revenues, and transfers for governmental programs.

¢ In the City’s business-type activities, revenues, and transfers increased 6% to $6,732,554 while expenses
decreased 3%.

¢ The general fund reported a surplus this year of $1,238,082.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is infended to serve as an introduction to the City of Grants’ basic financial statements. The
City of Grants’ basic financial statements consist of three separate components: 1) government-wide financial statements: 2)
fund financial statements: and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information, including budgetary comparison information, in addition to the basic financial statements.

Certain items in the prior year ﬁnancial statements have been reclassified for comparison purposes.

Governmental-Wide Finaﬁcial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a statement of net assets with all government funds and account types.
In addition, a statement of activitics for government activitics and business activities arc included.

The statement of net assets reports all financial and capital resources. The statement of net assets presents information on
all the City of Grants® assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. Over time increases or decreases in net
assets may determine whether the financial position of the City of Grants is improving or deteriorating.

The statements of accounts jllustrate the statement of activities for the City of Grants. The statement of activities presents
information, which illusirates how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. Again, revenues and
expenses are recorded using the accrual basis of accounting. The statement of activities includes revenues from
governmental activities as well as business-type activities. '

The City of Grants, also known as the primary government, is predominantly financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. These governmental activities include general government, public safety,
public works, health and welfare and cultural and recreation. These governmental activities are classified and reported in
governmental funds and special revenue funds. The business type activities are financed primarily from user fees charged .
to external parties for goods and or services. These activities are reported in enterprise funds in our financial statements.
The City of Grants’ business type activities include water and sewer systems, refuse, the City golf course, and housing.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11 through 12 of this report.

-4-




CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2011

Fund Financial Statements

The City of Grants accounts for its finances through several fiscal and accounting entities called funds. We, like other state
and local governments, use fund accounting to comply with state statutes regarding all finance-related transactions. The
City of Grants has created its respective funds to establish a measure of flow from financial resources and/or fo determine
net income or net loss. These funds allow the City of Grants to manage its finances more effectively and more efficiently.
The City of Grants maintains the following categories of fund types: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds. '

Governmental Funds

The governmental funds for the City of Grants include the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and
debt service funds. The governmental funds reporting focuses predominantly on the sources, uses, and balances of current
financial resources that have been established by an approved appropriated budget. The governmental funds provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. The financial
information contained in the governmental funds is useful in helping determine whether or not there are sufficient financial
assets to provide funding for the City’s current programs. '

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those in the private sector and focuses on the determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary funds are reported in the same
manner that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities (revenues and expenses). In
fact, the City’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities that are reported in the govermnment-wide
statements; however, they provide more detail in regards to cash flows for proprictary funds. The City’s intent is that costs
of providing the goods or services to the general public on a contimuing basis will be financed or recovered through user
charges. The City has the following enterprise funds: Utility Fund, Low Rent, Golf Course Operating Fund and Project
home, : '

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on assets and liabilities that are held in a trustee or agency capacity for other government
agencies and therefore cannot be used fo support the City’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statement for the reason that their resources are not available to the City. Agency funds are
custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Notes to the Financial Statementis

The City’s notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is necessary for a better understanding of all
data that is illustrated in the government-wide and fund financial statements.




CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2011

Covernment—Wide Financial Analysis

City of Grants
Summary of Net Assets
Governmental Business-Type .
Activitics Acfivities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Assets:
Current assets and other assefs $11,237,821 $10,183,041 $4,168,201 $3,725,831 $15,406,022 $13,908,872
Capital 3,7639,686 37,312,498 16,791,115 16,873,791 54,430,801 54,186,289

Total assers $48,877,507 $47,495,539 $20,959,316 $20,599,622 $69,836,823 368,095,161
Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities 51,173,680 51,093,688 $1,092,862 $1,191,709 $2,266,542 $2,285,397
Long-term liabilities 1,156,813 1,308,193 2905488 3,262,147 4,062,301 4,570,340

Total liabilities 2,330,493 2,401,881 3,998,350 4,453,856 6,328,343 6,855,737
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of . .
related debt 36,623,390 36,075,304 13,596,436 13,136,086 50,219,826 49,211,390
Restricted net assets 3,119,127 1,743,456 984,145 736,391 4,103,272 2,479,847
Unresiricted net assets 6,804,497 7,274,898 2,380,385 2273289 9,184,882 9,548,187

Total net assets 46,547,014 45,093,658 16,960,966 16,145,766 63,507,980 61,239,424

Total linhilities and net assets 348,877,507 $47,495,539 $20,959,316 $20,599,622 $69,8£56,823 $68,095,161

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) make up 77.0% of the City’s total assets from governmental activities.

Investments in capital assets include: land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. The City of Grants:

utilizes these assets to provide services {o its citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future sp'ending.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Grants répdrféd a positive balancé in all fhreé;categbrfes of net assets.

In evaluating the operating performances of an agency, the rate of return on assets is probably one of the most useful
measures of the entify’s profitability and efficiency. The return on assets ratio for the City is 3.2% for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2011. This ratio aids management in gauging the effectiveness of its use of assets.

In the Governmental activities total liabilities have been decreased by 3.0% due to a decrease in the seftlement payable.
Total assets have increased in 2011 due to the following factors. Taxes increased in 2011 by $1,355,412, Grants and
contributions decreased by $957,178, and charges for services increased by $18,506. Invesiment income decreased in fiscal
year 2011 due to a decrease in interest rates. Administrative fees from the Utility Fund have increased due fo scheduled rate
increases implemented. These factors primarily affect the increase in current assets in 2011 compared to 2010.

Net assets for business-type activities have increased by $815,200, an increase of 5.0%. The increase is due primarily to a
five-year rate increase for water, wastewater and refuse implemented in fiscal year 2007-2008.- Overall, liabilities were
reduced due to annual reductions in long-term debt. Additional debt was incurred in fiscal year 2011 to improve the water
system.



CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2011

Financial Analysis of the City’s Major Funds

GENERAL FUND
The General Fund is the major operating fund for the City. The General Fund is the smgle largest fund pertaining to
revenues and expenditures. Total revenues in fiscal year 2010 were $8,004,647 and $9,463,026 in 2011, an increase of
$1,458,379 (18.2%) for comparative years. The majority of the difference is due o an increase in taxes.

Expenditores in the General Fund for fiscal year 2010 were $6,152,233 and $6,378,547 for fiscal year 2011, an increase of
$226,314 (3.7%). The slight increase was due primarily fo a conscious effort to maintain expenditure levels in a declining
economy. The General Fund fund balance increased in 2011 in the amount of $1,238,082 with revenues exceeding
expenditures less transfers for an ending fund balance of $7,178,334 as of June 30, 2011. '

GENERAL GOYERNMENT IMPROVEMENTS FUND
The General Government Improvements Fund accounts for the City’s capital outlay projects primarily funded from the state
legislative appropriations, federal grants, and City monies. In the fiscal year 2009/2010 the City accounted for $836,431 in
federal grant revenues and $752,965 in state grants for total grant revenues of $1,589,396. Tn fiscal year 2010/2011 the
total grant revenues of $610,331 consisted of federal grant revenues of $314,978 and state grant revenues of $292,598.

The revenues received by the City will fluctuate as a resuli of grant appropriations received from year to year. Fluctuations
will also occur when monies are expended and received annually.

Expenditures in fiscal year 2009/2010 were $2,094,896. The majority of the expenditures were incurred for the Nimiiz
Bridge, roads, city hall building, downtown master plan, aicport improvements, sireet drainage projects, and various other
small equipment purchases. Expenditures in fiscal year 2010/2011 were $1,529,453 with an additional capital transfer out
of $706,382. The capital transfer was due to project Grants Funds expended and incurred in the General Government
Improvements Fund for the benefit of other funds. Expenditures were incurred for the City’s Nimitz Bridge, roads, city hall
building, downtown masterplan airport improvements, street drainage projects, and various other small equipment
purchases. :

. ~ UTILITY FUND _
The Utility Fund is used to account for all water, sewer and refuse revenues and expenses. It is a major.proprietary fund for
the City. Total operating revenues for 2009/2010 fiscal year was $5,696,211 and $5,675,004 for 2010/2011; a slight
decrease of $21,207 (.37%). The slight decrease is attributable fo variation in customer usage. Net income increased in
2011 versus 2010 by $804,675. Operating expenses decreased in fiscal year 2010/2011 compared to 2009/2010 by
$312,728, which is 11.8%. The remaining amount of the net income increase results from capital assets transferred in from
the general government improvement fund,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City of Grants total actual expenditures for fiscal year 2010/2011 were .6% under the budgeted expenditure amounts
for the year. Public safety is responsible for 35.3%, general government is responsible for 16.1% and public works is
responsible for 36.6% of the General Fund expenditures.

The City’s total state shared and municipal tax amount for fiscal year 2010/2011 increased by 27% over fiscal year
2009/2010. The Grants economy continued to show growth in spite of the overall economic down tums in the State and
County.

General Fund budgeted expenditures increased form the original budget to the final budget by $50,000. This increase was
for judgments for drainage issues paid by the City. There were no variations between the orlgmal budget and final budget
revenues for the General Fund.

-7-




CITY OF GRANTS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

“JUNE 30, 2011

City of Grants
Summary of Changes in Net Assels
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues: _ ‘
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $1,315,939 $1297433 $6,050,055 $6,072,468 $7,365,994 $7,369,901
Operating grants and contributions 1,277,977 1,394,042 15,048 64,444 1,293,625 1,458,486
Capital grants and contributions 748,283 1,589,396 0 0 748,283 1,589,396
General Revenue:
Taxes 8,421,979 17,066,567 0 0 8421979 7,066,567
Investment income 23,547 51,764 8,264 15,818 31,811 67,582
Miscellaneous 111,775 (438,798) {435) 6,690 111,340 432,108

Total revenue 11,899,500 10,960,404 6,073,532  6,159420 17,973,032 17,119,824
Expenses:
General Government 2,158,561 2,501,508 0 0 2,158,561 2,501,508
Public Safety 2,592,583 2,455,282 0 0 2,592,583 2,455,282
Public Works 3,010,023 2,277,864 0 0 3,010,023 2,277,864
Health and Welfare 921,404 992,066 0 0 921,404 992,066
Culiure and Recreation 1,053,367 1,051,987 0 0 1,053,367 1,051,987
Interest and fees on long-term debt 51,184 52,640 0 0 51,184 52,640 -
Water, sewer and refuse 0 0 4,930,148 5,253,111 4,930,148 5,253,171
Golf 0 0 829,114 701,273 829,114 701,273
Rental 0 0 158,092 162,356 158,092 162,356

Total expenses 9,787,122 9,331,347 5917,354 6,116,800 15704476 15448147
Increase in net assets before transfers 2,112,378 1,629,057 156,178 42.620 2,268,556 1,671,677
Transfers (659,022) (166,067) 659,022 166,067 0 0
Change in Net Assels 1,453,356 1,462,990 815200 - 208',68’_.!r 2,268,556 1,671,677
Net Assets — July | 45,093,658 43,630,668 16,145766 15937,079 61,239424 59,567,747
Net Assets - June 30 $46,547,014 $45,093,658 3$16,960,966 $16,145,766 $63,507,980 $61,239,424




CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2011

Government Activities

Revenue received from program and general activities was predominantly less than expenses for fiscal year 2011, with the
exceplion of capital granfs where amounts expended have been capitalized.

Business-Type Activifies

Business-type activities income before transfers increased the City’s net asscts by $156,178. Decreases in expenses were
responsible for this net increase.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

- As mentioned earlier, the City of Grants uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. As of the end of current fiscal year, the City of Grants governmental funds reported combined ending
balances of $10,290,550, which is an increase from the prior year ending fund balances. The City’s proprietary funds
provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statement, but in more detail. The business-
type activitics have demonstrated sufficient revenue and sufficient cash flow to guarantee that all expenditures, including
long-term debt will be paid in a timely manner.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City of Grants net capital assets for its government type activities as of June 30, 2011 amounted to $37,639,686. This
investment in capital assets includes land improvements, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure. The most significant impact on capital assets during the year resulted from the following:

e  Street Improvements and Drainage Projects

Long-term Debit

The City’s total debt (excluding compensated absences and leases payable) as of June 30, 2011 is $4,184,707, which
decreased by $505,486, which represents payments of outstanding debt net of new debt proceeds of $208,438. The
majority of this amount is due to the outstanding loan amount of $2,853,411 that was from the New Mexico Environmental
Department, for construction and acquisition of equipment for a wastewater treatment plant facility previously constructed
in 1992,

More detailed information regarding these activities and funds is included in Noie 5.
The City of Grants issued no new long-term bonds during the current fiscal year. The City has no general obligation bonds

- outstanding at June 30, 2011. The City did borrow $208,438 from New Mexico Finance Authority Water Trust Board for
water system improvements.




CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2011

City of Grants
Outstanding Bonds and Liabilities to Financial Institutions
Govemmental Business-type Total
Aclivities Activities Activities
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenue Bonds $425,000 $555,000 $265,000 $390,000 $690,000 $945,000
General Obligation Bonds 0 0 0 0 0 0
Notes Payable 484,844 479,194 2,853,411 2,993,777 3,338,255 3,472,971
NMFA — Fire Truck 156,452 203,000 0 0 156,452 203,000
Capital Leases 0 0 284,706 353,928 284,706 353,928
Total ' $1,066,296 $1,237,194 $3.,403,117 $3,737,705 $4,469,413 $4,974,899

Economic Factors

The City of Grants base gross receipts taxes which is the City’s largest resource increased by 2% from fiscal year 2007/2008
to fiscal year 2008/2009, 4.5% from fiscal year 2008/2009 to fiscal year 2009/2010, 35% from fiscal year 2010/2011. The
current fiscal year shows a moderate rate increase. As the overall economic difficuities continue to occur in other
municipalities in New Mexico 35% is substantial positive growth for the City.

The City’s comparison of gross receipts for 2009/2010 to fiscal year 2010/2011 excluding construction gross receipts is an
increase of 35% in fiscal 2010/2011. The City continues to maintain consistency in their collections. There is one main
indicator that explains the above mentioned overall 35% increase. The State of New Mexico implemented an amnesty
program for outstanding Gross Receipts taxes which to the best of the Cities estimate explains approximately 65% of the
35% increase. The remaining increase would be because the price of fuel encourages area residents and outlying areas to
trade in the City of Grants. The City continues to promote economic development in aggressively supporting Cibola
Communities Economic Development Foundation.

The City has completed a utility rate structure study done by an engineering firm in order to enable the City to solidify their
utility fund. The City implemented the rate increases in the Utility Fund in March 2008. The City continues to insure that
revenues are sufficient to meet budgeted obligations. The City makes every effort possible to enstire that the resources
available are maximized to prov1de services to the public.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Grants® finances for those interested in the
government finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or request for additional
information should be addressed to the City of Grants, City Manager at 600 West Santa Fe Avenue, Grants, New Mexico
87020. '

-10-




'CITY OF GRANTS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and investments $9,453,083 $2,334,898 $11,787,981
Cash held with trustee 506,052 0 506,052
Grant revenue receivable 125,887 0 125,887
Accounts receivable, net 1,170,139 0 1,170,139
State taxes receivable 0 534,689 534,689
Internal balances {26,676) 26,676 0
Inventories 0 68,691 68,691
Other asssis 9,336 0 9,336
Restricted Assets:
Cash - S8F - Construction. 0 208,438 208,438
Cash - debt reserves 0 775,545 775,545
Cash - customer deposits 0 219,264 219,264
Capital Assets:
Capital assets not depreciated 5,138,228 2,784,593 7,922 821
Capital assets, depreciated 45,678,971 34,599,387 80,278,358
Accumulated depreciation {13,177,513) (20,592 865) (33,770,378)
Tofal capital assets 37,639,686 16,791,115 54,430,801
Total assets 48 877,507 - 20,959,316 69,836,823
Liabilities
Accounts payable 605,361 256,460 861,821
Accrued payroll 332,574 46,435 379,009
Customer deposits 0 . 223,602 223,502
Prepaid rents 0 249 ° 249
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 235,745 586,216 801,961
Due in mare than one year . 1,156,813 2,905,488 4,062,301
Total liabilities 2,330,493 3,998,350 - 6,328,843 -
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 36,623,390 13,596,436 50,219,826
Restricted for:
Debt service 637,812 775,545 1,413,357
Other purposes 2,481,315 208,600 2,689,915
Unrestricted (deficit) 6,804,497 2,380,385 9,184,882
Total net assets $46,547,014  $16,960,966  $63,507,980

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-11-



CITY OF GRANTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assels

Operating Capilal Primary Govemment
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-lype
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contribulions Activities Activities Total
Primary Government
Governmental Actlvities:
General govemrﬁenl $2,158,561 $269,125 $159,893 $0 (31,739,543} $0 7] .739.543)
Public salety 2,502,583 26,667 241,838 0 {2,324,078) 1] {2,324,078)
Public works 3,010,023 066,174 [} 730,331 (1,313,518 ] (1,313,518)
Health and welfare 921,404 27,615 855,661 17,952 {20,276) 0 {20,278)
Cultural and recrealional 1,053,367 36,358 20,685 0 (996,324) 0 (996,324)‘
Interest and fees on 0
long-term debt 51,184 0 0 0 (51,184) 0 (51,184)
Tolal governmental aclivities 9,787,122 1,315,939 1,277,977 748,283 (6.444,923) (6.444,923)
Business-Type Activities:
Waler 2,242,977 » 2,009,866 0 0 0 744,856 744,856
Sewer 2,036,769 » 1,842,204, 0 0 0 0 0
Refuse 650,402 ¢ 1,732,844 « 0 (] b} 0 ]
Golf 829,114 303,254 0 0 ] (525,860) (525,860)
Rental 158,092 71,797 15,648 0 ] F70,647) [{0.847)
Tolal business-type aclivilies 5,917,354 6,050,055 15,648 [1] 1] 148,349 148,349
Total primary government $15,704,476 $7,365,994 $1,293,625 $748,283 ($6,444,923) $148,349 {$6,296,574)
General Revenues
Taxes:
Gross receiptsfstate shared $7.015,146 30 $7,015,146
Property 678,597 0 678,597
Lodgers’ tax 417,248 i) 417,248
Franchise tax 310,988 310,983
Investment income 23,547 8,264 31,811
Other 111,775 5 111,780
Loss on assel disposals 0 (440} {440)
Operating transfers, net 47,360 (47,360} 0
Capital transfers, net (706.382) 706,382 0
. Jotal general revenues and transfers 7,898,279 666,851 8,565,130
Change in net assels 1,453,356 815,200 2,268,556
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year ) 45,003,658 16,145,766 81,239,424
$46,547,014 $16,960,966 $63,507,980

Net assets (deficif), end of year

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral 'part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

- BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Major Funds

General Nonmajor Total
General Government Governmental Governmental
: : Fund Improvements Funds ‘Funds
ASSETS -
Pooled cash and investments $6,413,747 $435,380 $2,603,956 $9,453,083
Cash held with trustee 0 0 506,052 506,052
Accounts receivable, net allowance 1,109,854 0 60,285 1,170,139
Grant revenue receivable 0 63,996 61,891 125,887
Due from other funds 4 500 0 0 4,500
Total assets $7,528,101 $499,376 $3,232,184  $11,259,661
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $32,262 $506,287 $66,812 $605,361
Accrued payroll 317,505 0 15,069 332,574
Due fo other funds 0 0 31,176 31,176
Tofal liabilities 349,767 506,287 113,057 969,111
Fund Balances:
Restricted 0 0 2,438,938 2,438,938
Committed 177,269 0 0 177,269
Assigned 0 0 680,189 680,189
Unassigned 7,001,065 (6,911) 0 6,994 154
Tofal fund balance 7,178,334 {6,911) 3,119,127 10,290,550
Total liabilities and fund halance $7,528,101 $499.376 $3,232,184 $11,259,661

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

FUND BALANCE of Governmental Funds $10,290,550
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assels are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. : 37,639,686
Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the funds. (1,392,558)
Bond issuance costs are capitalized and amortized and therefore, are not expensed
{346,696 capitalized and $37,360 amortized). 9,336
Net assets of gbvemmenta! actlvities $46,547,014

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
| FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Major Funds
General Nonmajor Total
General Government Governmental Governmental
Fund Improvements Funds Funds

REVENUES . '
Intergovernmental revenue $232,743 $610,331 $1,180,626  $2,023,700
Property tax 678,597 0 0 678,597
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 6,891,024 0 124,122 7,015,146
Lodgers' tax 0 0 417,248 417,248 -
Licenses and permits 77,986 0 0 77,986
Fines 21,5610 0 0 21,510
Franchise tax ‘ 310,988 0 0 310,988
Fees, service charges, and rental revenue ‘ 1,142,107 16,843 57,493 1,216,443
Investment income ' 17,057 0 6,490 23,647
Sale of property 17,220 0 11,480 28,700
Donations : 1,390 0 1,170 2,560
Miscellaneous 72,404 0 10,671 83,075

Total revenuss 9,463,026 627,174 1,809,300 11,899,500
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 1,009,694 0 73,878 1,083,472

Public safety 2,281,598 0 186,814 2,468,412

Public works 2,324,206 0 613,064 2,937,270

Health and welfare ' : 0 0 819,964 819,964

Cultural and recreational 725,951 0 327,500 1,053,451
Capilal outlay ' 37,198 1,629,453 49,541 1,616,192
Debt Service:

Principal 0 0 220,898 220,898

Interest and other charges : 0 0 37,205 37,205

Fees 0 0 9,309 9,309

Total expenditures 6,378,647 1,529,453 2,338,173 10,246,173
Revenues over (under) expendiliures 3,084,479 (902,279) {528,873) 1,653,327
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 199,384 850,000 1,621,924 2,671,308
Transfers out (2,045,781) 0 (578,167) (2,623,948)
Capital transfer out 0 (7086,382) 0 (708,382)

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,846,397) 143,618 1,043,757 (659,022)
Nef changes in fund balances 1,238,082 (758,661) 514,884 994,305
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning of year 5,940,252 751,750 2,604,243 9,206,245
Fund balance, end of year $7,178,334 ($6,911)  $3,119,127 $10,290,550

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statementé.
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CITY OF GRANTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - Governmental Funds - ' $994,305
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlay ($1,549,5692) exceeded depreciation ($1,222,404). 327,188

Repayment of bond and notes payable principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets ($220,898). 220,898

Some expenses (or reduction thereof) reported in the Stalement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds -

accrued compensated absences. (84,365)
Bond issuance costs are amortized. (4,670)
Change in net assets of governmental activities ‘ $1,453,356

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
and other financing sources (uses)

Budgeted cash carryover

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES '
Taxes $626,327 $626,327 $651,581 $25,254
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 4,782 169 4,782,169 7,020,227 2,238,058
Franchise fees 293,000 293,000 325,575 32,675
Fine and forfeits 8,000 8,000 21,510 13,510
Licenses and permits 19,500 19,500 77,986 58,486
Intergovernmental revenue 198,534 198,534 232,743 34,209
Fees and service charges 1,080,000 1,080,000 1,142,107 62,107
Donations 500 500 1,390 880
Investment income 15,000 15,000 16,349 1,349
Sale of properly 17,000 17,000 17,220 220
Other revenue 6,000 6,000 72,229 66,229
Total revenues 7,046,030 7,046,030 9,578,917 2,532,887
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,127,550 1,177,660 1,042,181 135,369
Public safety 2,917,377 2,917,377 . 2,283,239 634,138
Public works , 1,727,854 1,727,854 2,367,389 (639,535)
Cultural and recreational 670,873 670,873 729,123 (58,250)
Health and welfare 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 8,500 8,500 37,198 {28,698)
Total expenditures 6,452,154 6,502,154 6,459,130 43,024
. Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 593,876 543,876 3,119,787 2,575,911
Other Financing Sources {(Uses):
Operating transfers in 178,885 199,384 199,384 0
Operating transfers (out) {1,790,659) (2,045,784) (2,045,781) 3
Total other financing sources (uses) (1.611,674) (1,846,400) (1,846,397) 3

(1,017,798) (1,302,524) $1,273,390 $2,575,914

1,017,798

1,302,524

$0

$0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financial sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (budgelary) $1,273,390
Adjustments for revenue accruals, transfers, earnings on
investments (115,891
' Adjustments for expenditures for payables, inventory, other
expenditure accruals 80,583
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and ofher financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $1,238,082

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Nonmajor
Golf Proprietary
Course Utilities Funds Total
ASSETS
Current Assets: _ :
Cash and cash equivalents $06,885 $2,183,373° $54,640 $2,334,898
Cash held with frustee 0 0 0 0
-+ Investments 0 0 0 0

Accounts receivable - other 281 0 0 281
Accounts receivable, water and sewer (net of allowance) 0 534,408 0 534,408
Interest receivable 0 0 0 0
Inventory 0 68,691 0 68,691
Due from other funds 0 _ 0 26,676 . 26,676

Tolal current assels 97,166 2,786,472 - 81,316 2,084,954
Non-Current Assets '
Restricted Assets:
Cash - SBF - Construction. 0 208,438 0 208,438
Cash - debt reserves 0 775,545 0 775,p45
Cash - customer deposits 0 219,264 0 219,264

Total restricted assels 0 1,203,247 . 0 1,203,247 -
Capital Assets: ‘
Capital assets - not depreciated 0 2,737,869 46,724 2,784,593
Capital assets - depreciated 2,221,956 31,229,963 1,147,468 34,599,387
Less accumulated depreciation (1,008,827) (18,977,364) (606,574) (20,592,865)

Ne! capital assets 1,213,029 14,990,468 587,618 16,791,115

Total assels 1,310,195 18,980,187 668,934 20,959,316
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities: .
Accounts payable 44 153 206,225 6,082 256,460
Accrued payroll 21,609 19,900 5,026 46,435
Tenant security deposits/utility deposits 0 219,102 4,400 223,502
Prepaid rents 0 0 249 249
Due to other funds 0 0 0 0
Current portion of long-term debt/lease payable 73,300 492,916 0 566,216

Tolal current liabilities 138,962 938,143 15,757 1,092,862
Non-Current Liabhilities:
Long-term debt 0 2,625,495 0 2,625,495
Compensated absences 33,464 30,839 4,284 68,587
Leases payahle 211,406 0 0 211,406

Total noncurrent liabilities 244 870 2,656,334 4,284 2,905,488

Total liabilities 383,832 3,694,477 20,041 3,998,350
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 028,323 12,080,495 - 587,618 13,596,436
Restricted for construction 0 208,438 " 0 208,438
Restricted for debt service 0 775,545 " 0 775,645
Resfricted for customer deposits 0 162 ° 0 162
Unrestricted {1,960) 2,321,070 61,275 2,380,385

Total net assets $926,363  $15,385,710 $648,893  $16,960,966

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
' - FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Nonmajor
Golf Proprietary :
Course Utilities Funds Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Water, sewer and refuse sales $0 $5,675,004 $0 $5,675,004
Golf fees 208,385 0 0 298,385
Rental income 4,869 0 71,797 76,666

Tolal operating revenues 303,254 5,675,004 71,797 6,050,055
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operaling expenses 651,707 4,207,886 124,166 4,983,759
Depreciation 157,310 649,782 33,926 841,018

Tolal operaling expenses 809,017 4,857, 668 158,092 5,824,777

Net income (loss) from operafions ~ (505,763) 817,336 {86,295) 225,278
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal grants and subsidies 0 0 15,648 15,648
Interest earnings 0 8,165 99 8,264
Interest expense (20,097) (71,508) 0 (91,602)
Other miscellaneous income (expense) 0 0 5 5
Loss on asset disposals 0 0 {440) (440)
Other debt expense 0 (975) 0 (975)

Tofal non-operaling revenues (expenses) (20,097) (64,315) 15,312 {69,100)

Net income (loss) before contributions and transfers {5625,8860) 753,021 (70,983) 156,178
Operating transfers in 398,000 1,065,459 21,583 1,485,042
Operating transfers (out) 0 {1,518,874) (13,528) (1,532,402)
Capital transfers in 0 755,333 112 755,445
Capital transfers (out) 0 {48,951) (112) (49,063)

Change in net assets (127,860) 1,005,988 {62,928) 815,200
Total fund net asselts, at beginning of year 1,054,223 14,379,722 711,821 16,145,766
Total fund net assets, at end of year $926,363 $15,385,710 $648,893 $16,960,966

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. |




CITY OF GRANTS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Nonmajor

Golf Proprietary
‘ Course Utilities Funds Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers (including other funds) $304,104 $5,666,030 $95,454 $6,065,588
Cash paid to suppliers (285,076) (3,826,404) (290,459) (4,401,939)
Cash paid to employees (320,773) (378,669) (637) {700,079)

Nel cash provided (used} by operating activities (301,745) 1,460,957 (195,642) 963,570
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grants ad subsidies 0 0 15,648 15,648
Advances (to) from other funds 0 0 (32,939) (32,939)
Transfers in (out) 398,000 (453,415) 8,055 (47,360)
Non tenant income 0 0 5 5

Net cash provided (used} by noncapital

financing activities 398,000 (453,415) (9,231) (64,646)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment 0 {(48,951) (3,499) (52,450)
Disposition of assets 0 0 491 491
Long-term debt proceeds 0 208,438 0 208,438
Loss on asset disposal 0 0 (440) {440)
Principal paid; revenue bonds/lease purchase/advances {69,222) (473,804) -0 (543,0286)
Interest paid: revenue bonds/lease purchasef/advances (20,097) {71,505) 0 {91,602)
Other income 0 0 0 0
Other debt expense 0 (975) 0 {975)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

financing activilies (89,319) {386,797) (3,448) {479,564)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest received 0 8,165 463 8,628
Net cash provided (used} by invesling aclivities 0 8,165 463 8,628

Net increase {decrease) in pooled cash 6,936 628,910 (207,858) 427,988 -
Pooled cash and investments, beginning of year 89,949 2,757,710 262,498 3,110,157
Pooled cash and investments, end of year $96,885 $3,386,620 $54,640 $3,538,145
Cash and cash equivalents $96,885 $2,183,373" $54,640 $2,334,898 "
Cash held with trustee 0 0 0 0
Restricted cash 0 1,203,247 0 1,203,247
Tolal cash $96,885 $3,386,620 $54,640 $3,638,145
Non Cash Transactions: .
$0 $706,382 $0

Capital assets transferred in

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Nonmajor
Galf Proprietary
Course Utilities Funds Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) ($505,763) $817,336 ($86,295) $225,278
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 157,310 649,782 33,926 841,018
Provision for uncollectible accounts 0 (1,817) 0 (1,817)
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 850 (7,157) 2,708 (3,599)
Due from/{to) other funds 0 0 20,949 20,949
Inventories 0 2,660 0 2,660
Prepaids 0 0 0 0
Increase {Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable 41,505 (5,889) (169,521) {133,905)
Woages payable 2,419 (203) 2,621 4,837
Compensated absences 1,934 (710) (105) 1,119
Tenant deposits/utility deposits 0 6,955 (161) 6,794
Tenants prepaid rent 0 0 236 236
Total adjustmenls 204,018 643,621 {109,347) 738,292
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ($301,745)  $1.460,957 ($195,642) $963,570

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash, cerlificales of deposits and investments $24,558
Total assets $24,558
LIABILITIES
Due to others $24,5658
Total labilities $24,558

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description and Renbrling Entity

The municipality was originally incorporated in the year 1941 as the Town of Grants. On October 20, 1966, an ordinance
was adopted pursuant to Section 14-1-3, New Mexico Statutes, 1952 Annotated, as amended proclaiming the Town as City
of Grants (the “City”) effective December 1, 1966. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and
provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety - (Police, Fire, and Emergency Ambulance),
- Highways and Streets, Sanitation, Health and Social Services, Culture-Recreation, Water and Sewer Facilities, Housing
Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative Services. The City operates the following
enterprises: water, sewer, public housing, and a golf course.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth
in GASB 14. The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the
governing body’s ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is finangial
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the
selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence aperations, and
accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public
service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the City and/or its citizens, or
whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the City and is generally available to its citizens. A
third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence
of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the City of Granis Housing Authority is the only component unit, which has
been blended with the ofher funds of the City in the special revenue funds (Housing Capital Funds Program and Housing
Authority Vouchers) and enterprise funds (Low Rent and Home Program). The Housing Authority Board is appointed by
the City Council. :
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

L

Government-Wide Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
primary government (the City). These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for
fiduciary fund activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presenis a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the différent business-
type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a progtam or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable fo a particular function, Indirect
expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activitigs. Program revenues
include (&) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as programn revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues, -

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its
fiduciary funds. Separafe statements for each fund category (governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary) are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, cach displayed in a separate column.
All remaining governmental and enferprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or
ancillary activities.

The City reports the general fund as a major governmental fund:

Primary Operating Fund — It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major funds:

General Government Improvements Fund — Accounts for construction and improvements funds received from various
- sources for the improvement of City properties.

Enferprise — Utilities fund accounts for the provision of water, sewer, and refuse services to the residents of the City. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to, administration,
operation, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection.

Enterprise — Golf Course Fund — accounts for the operation of the municipal golf course.

Apency Funds — are used to account for monies held by the City in a cusfodial capacity. They do not report operations or
have a measurement focus.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — the povernment-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, The government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred; regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is -
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from sales taxes and franchise taxes are recognized if
they are collected within sixty days after year-end. These derived tax revenues are recognized when the underlying
transaction fakes place (when the retail sale is generated). Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requiremenis have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The Citly considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available ifthe revenues
.are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property faxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and inferest are
considered fo be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as -
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds cerfain programms by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement
grants, categorical block granis, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted
and unresiricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost- reimbursement grant
resources to such programs, followed by cateporical block grants, and then by general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the City follow FASB Statements and Interpretations
issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless
those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City Council adopts an annual budget for the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Enterprise, and Debt Service
TFunds, which are prepared by management and approved by the City Council and by the Local Government Division of the
' Department of Finance and Administration.

These budgets are prepared on the non-GAAP cash basis, excluding encumbrances, and secure appropriation of funds for
only one year. Carryover funds must be re-appropriated in the budget of the subsequent fiscal year. Because the budget
process in the State of New Mexico requires fhat the beginning cash balances be appropriated in the budget of the
subsequent fiscal year, such appropriated balance is legally restricted and is therefore used in the calculation to determine
the balance.

Actual expenditures may not exceed the budget on a fund basis, i.e. budgeted expenditures must be within budgeted
amounts. Budgets may be amended in two ways. All budget transfers that will exceed a cumulative of five percent of a
department’s total budget require approval from the Local Governmental Division of the Depariment of Finance and
Administration. Transfers, which do not exceed the five percent limit, require approval by the City Council. Resolutions for
budget increases will only be approved in the event of an emergency.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The budgets for the Housing Authority follow HUD requirements in that certain programs are not budgeted (HOI\AE
program) and other program budgets are guidelines only and therefore, budgets are not amended.

The budgetary information presented in these financial statements has been amended in accordance with the above

procedures.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Prior fo June 1, the City submits a proposed budget to the Local Government Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration. The budget submitted has been approved by the City Council afier presentation by the City Manager The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

The Local Government Division, in relation to the City, shall:

a.

Examine each proposed budget, and on or before July 1 of each year, approve and certify to the City an
operating budget for use pending approval of final budget.

Hold public hearings on proposed budgets.

Make such corrections; revisions, and amendments to proposed budgets as may be necessary to meet the
requirements of law.

Certify a final budget for the City prior fo the first Monday in September of cach year. Such budgets, when
approved, shall he binding upon all tax officials of the State.

Upon the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, authorize the transfer of funds from one
budget item to another budget item when such transfer is required or an emergency condition exists meriting
such transfer and such transfer is not prohibited by law. In case of emergency necessitating the expenditures for
item or ifems not provided for in the budget, upon approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, the
budget may be revised to authorize such expenditures.

With written approval of the Secretary of Finance and Adminisiration and the Attorney General, increase the
total budget of the City in the event the City undertakes an activity, service, project, or construction program
which was not contemplated at the time the final budget was adopted and approved and which activity, service,
project, or construction program will produce sufficient revenue to cover such increase in the budget or the
City has surplus finds on hand not necessary to meet the expenditures provided for in the budget with which to
cover such increase in the budget.

Supewise the disbursement of funds to the end that expenditures will not be made in excess of budgeted items
or for ifems not budgeted, and that there will not be illegal expenditures,

Preseribe the form for all budgets, books, records, and accounts for the City.
With the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, make rules and regulations relating to

budgets, records, reports, handling and disbursement of public funds, or in any manner relating to the financial
affairs of the City.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFTICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions
that alter the fotal expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council and the Local Government Division of
the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA). Unexpended budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control devise during the year for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Fund. :

Assefs Liabilities and Equity

Cash Equivalents

The City pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through investment activities. A *“Pooled Cash”
concept is used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under this method, all cash is
pooled for investment purposes and each fund has equity in the pooled amount.

Investments

The City’s investments are regulated by state law, as well as by guidelines and rules promulgated by the State Investment
Council and the State Treasurer, All investments are generally highly liquid in nature and are integrated with cash on the
financial statements with appropriate disclosure. Investmenis are stated at fair value, which is determined using selected
bases. Cerfificates of deposit are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value. Additional cash,
investment information, and fair values are presented in Note 2.

The City participates in the State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool. This pool is regulated by state law and
regulations. Investment in the pool is reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value.

Restricted Cash and Investiments

The amount of cash held representing utility deposits and rental are deposits classified as restricted on the Statement of Net
Assets - Proprietary Funds. : '

Receivables and Payables

Under generally accepted accounting principles the City would normally include property taxes receivable subsequent to
sixty days after year-end as revenue and accounts receivable. Cibola County has been unable to determine this amount as of
June 30, 2011 and therefore, this amount has not been recorded on the records of the City. The unrecorded revenue is not
material to the financial statements as of June 30, 2011.

Accrued expenses are accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities (withheld taxes and deductions).
Proprietary I'und Types

Accounts receivable consists of charges to users for utility services provided, and for unpaid charges from customers of the
golf course, and for rental assistance provided fo citizens.

Management has determined that accounts receivable are fully collectible at June 30, 2011 with the exception of certain
receivables from utility services provided to customers. Accordingly, a $74,896 allowance for doubtful accounts has been
recorded in the Joint Utility Enterprise Fund.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. The City defines capital assets as
assefs with lives greater than one-year and a cost or donated value of $5,000 or greater in accordance with New Mexico
State Statutes.

Donated capital asseis are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Infrastructure assets have been
recorded (predominantly roads and utilities). The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives: ‘

Asset Class - Estimated Useful Lives
Land improvements 10-350
Infrastructure 25-50
Buildings and improvements 30-50
Machinery and Equipment 3-15

The City has not capitalized library books as their net book value has been determined to be immaterial.

Tt is the policy of the City to capitalize interest for construction projects incurred through the proprietary funds.

Property Taxes

The City of Grants receives property taxes from the Cibola County Treasurer for operational purposes. Property taxes are
assessed on January | of each year, except on livestock, and are payable in two equal installments on November 10th of the
year in which the tax bill is prepared and April 10th of the following year, with the levies becoming delinquent 30 days
thereafter. The authorized municipal tax rate for general operating purposes is .004555 per $1,000 of net taxable value of
both residential and non-residential property allocated to the municipality. In addition, tax levies are authorized by statute to
service payments due on general obligation bonds which have been authorized pursuant to state law. Currently, the City has
no outstanding general obligation bonds.

The Mill Levy tax rates for the City of Grants for 2011 were as follows:

Residential Non-Residential
General Operating 0065 - .0065

These are the fax rates applied to each $1,000 of property value taxable by the City.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues relate to grant funds received prior to expenditures. The funds are considered unearned and therefore
have been reported as deferred revenues, -
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income Taxes

As a local government entity, the City is not subject to federal or state income taxes.

Compensated Absences

The City allows employees to accrue annual leave based on years of service. Upon termination, acerued annual leave is paid
in fuil. Employees are eligible to be paid half of their accrued sick leave up to 240 hours upon termination.

As of June 30, 2011, the liability for accrued compensated absences is $444,849, The amount applicable to the Enterprise
Funds Utility is $30,839; Golf Cowrse is $33,464, and Nonmajor Proprietary Funds of $4,284. The amount applicable to
Government Activities is $376,262. These liabilities will be liquidated as leave time is utilized from the various funding
sources from which each employee is paid.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the proprietary fund type considers all highly liquid investments with maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable
supplies held for consumption.

Net Asscts
Net assets are displayed in three components:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt — This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

and reduced by the outstanding balances of any related debt attiibutable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted Net Assets ~ Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either (1) externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions or laws or regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets — Nef assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” and “Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt.”
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s cash balances are reserved from subsequent years and consist of demand deposits, interest bearing savings
accounts, certificates of deposit and short-term investment funds. The certificates of deposit have varying interest rates and
maturity dates. The majority of City cash and investments are co-mingled. All interest income is accounted for in the related
funds.

The City’s investments are governed by state law. State regulations require that uninsured demand deposits and deposit-fype
investments such as certificates of deposit be collateralized by the depository thrift or banking institution. At present, state
statutes require that a minimum of fifly percent of uninsured balances on deposit with any one institution must be
collateralized, with higher requirements up to 100% for financially troubled institutions.

Cash and certificates of deposit at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following:

CASH
Reconciled On Deposit
Balance June 30, 2011 Account Type
Petty Cash -- Cibola Senior Center $66
Petty Cash — General Operating 1,840
Petty Cash — Utilities Operating 500
Petty Cash — Water Meter Deposits ‘ 200
Petty Cash — Appearance Bonds 500
Grants State Bank : 3,460,865 $3,753,228 Checking
Wells Fargo Bank Government Imp. 435,380 435,380 Checking
Wells Fargo Bank Payroll 0 6,090 Checking
First Community Bank Housing Authority — Vouchers 315,556 311,670 Checking
First Community Bank Housing Authority — Low Rent 54,640 53,636 Checking
First Communify Bank Housing Home Program 0 0 Checking
4,269,547 4,560,004

Held and Directed by Trustee

Cash — directed by the New Mexico Finance Authority.

Debt service account $117,227

- Debt service account 124
Debt service account 174,949
Debt service account 83,997
Debt reserve account 64,230
Debt reserve account’ 149,522
Debt reserve account - 106,016
Project account — Water Trust Board ‘ 40,000
Project account — Water Trust Board 168,438

© $904,503
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NOTE 2, CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments
Percent of
Investment
Cost Market Portfolio
Grant State Banlc:
Certificate of Deposit ~ $500,000 $500,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
Certificate of Deposit 400,000 400,000
Certificate of Deposit 400,000 400,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
2,300,000 2,300,000 27%
State Treasurer:
Pool — Reserve Contingency Fund 14,747 12,535
Pool — LGIP Fund 6,035,253 6,035,253
Total Pool 6,050,000 6,047,788 73%
Total Investinents 8,350,000 8,347,788 100%
Total Cash and Investments $13,524,050 $13,521,838
Governmental Activities $9,959,135
Business-Type Activities 2,334,808 *
Business-Type Activities Restricted 1,203,247 -
Fiduciary Funds 24,558
$13,521,838
Weighted
Credit Risk- Average
Investment Type Cost Basis Market Value  Rating Maturity Days
State Investment Pool** - LGIP $6,035,253 $6,035,253 AAAm 36
State Investment Pool — Reserve Contingency Fund 14,747 12,535 ¢
CD’s 2,300,000 2,300,000 NR 90
8,350,000 8,347,788
Less investments reported as cash equivalents (8,347,788)
$o
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NOTE 2, CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
** The City’s investment in the Stafe Investment Pool was nof rated, although the securities within the pool are rated.
a. The investments ar¢ valued at fair value based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date;

b. The State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool is not SEC registered. The State Treasurer is
authorized to invest the short-term invesiment funds with the advice and consent of the State Board of Finance
in accordance with Sections 6-10-10 I through 6-10-10 P and Sections 6-10-10 1A and E, NMSA 1978.

c. The pool does not have unit shares. Per Section 6-10-10.1F, NMSA 1978, at the end of each month all inferest
carned is distributed by the State Treasurer fo the confributing entities in amounts directly proportionate to the
respective amounts deposited in the fund and the length of time the amounts fund were invested; and

d. Participation in the local govérnment investment pool is voluntary.

e. Separately issued financial statements are available from the New Mexico State Treasurer that does disclose the
collateral pledged to secure State Treasurer cash and investments.

¢ The Reserve Contingency Fund was established from the State Investment Pool LGIP’s remaining position in the Reserve
Primary Fund. The Reserve Contingency Fund, which is not rated, is a non-performing asset and, as such, a WAM cannot
be calculated. The remaining balance of the fund has been written down to 85% based on the estimated recoverable
amount.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss aitributed to the magnitude of the City’s
investment in a single issuer. The City’s policies place no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer.

Credit Risk— The City’s investments shall be in accordance with State Law, 6-10-10, and 6-10-10.1 NMSA 1978, including
but nof limited to the following: Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, Sirips, and US Government securities which are backed by
the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. Negotiable sccurities of the State of New Mexico or any county,
municipality, or school district with the advice and consent of the Board of Finance per 6-10-44 NMSA 1978, 6-10-.
IOENMSA 1978, 6-10-10NMSA 1978.

Interest Rate Risk —Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the City
investments. The City’s investment policy follows New Mexico State Statute Section 6-1 0-36E (NMSA, 1978 Comp)
requiring the inferest rate on time deposits shall not be less than the rate fixed by the State Board of Finance, but in no case
shall the rate of interest be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United States Treasury bills of the same
maturity on the day of deposit.

Foreign Currency Risk— Deposits and Investments — The City is not exposed to the risk that changes in exchange rates will

adversely affect the fair value of an investment as none of the investments pools nor certificates of deposit are dominated in
a foreign currency. '

-32-



CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 3. PLEDGED COLLATERAL

First
Community Grants

Bank State Bank  Wells Fargo
Cash in bank, per June 30, 2011 (Note 2) $365,306 $3,753,228 $441,470
Certificates of deposit (Note 2) 0 2,300,000 0
Less: FDIC coverage {250,000) (500,000) - (250,000)
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee «* (115,306)  (3,503,228) (191,470)
Uninsured public funds -0 2,050,000 0
100% collateral requirement 0 0 0
50% collateral requirements 0 1,025,000 0
Pledged securities 0 5,911,015 0
Over (under) Collateralized $0  $4,886,015 $0

Securities are held at Federal Home Loan Bank Dallas (Dallas, Texas).

¢ All non interest bearing accounts (demand deposits and NOW accounts with an interest rate equal to or less than .25%)
are guaranteed, in addition to the $250,000 insurance coverage on demand deposits, through the Temporary Liquidity

Guarantee Program.
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NOTE 3. PLEDGED COLLATERAL (CONTINUED)

Total Pledged

Grants State Banlk Par Value
Belen Call Fr 077581KT2 08/01/2011 $199,986
Gallup McKinley Cnty NMSD Non-Call Bond 364010NZ7 08/01/2012 301,824
Dulce ISD Non-Call Fr, Bond 264430FH7 07/11/2011 100,000
Dulce ISD Non-Call Fr, Bond 264430JA8 05/01/2012 135,090
Dulce ISD Non-Call Fr, Bond 264430G12 05/01/2015 299,265
Dulce NM ISD GO Bond 264430HV4 05/01/2012 65,043
‘Catron & Cibola County’s Non-Callable, Bond 149321 BNO 07/15/2012 111,339
Clovis Community College Call, Bond 18934NAM4  06/01/2013 110,000
Chama SD Non-Call, Bond 157670CR9 08/01/2016 261,155
Cobre Consol, SD No.2 Non-Call FR, Bond 19105RACS 08/01/2011 200,107
Grants & Cibola County’s NMSch Dist., Bond 388240DX8 11/15/2013 . 124,910
Alamogordo Wir/Swr NC FR Bond (11500FS9 06/01/2013 120,786
Chaves County Non-Call Bond 162634BG3 08/01/2012 200,000
Bernalillo Muni SD Non-Call Fr, Bond 085279LR6 08/01/2011 99,996
Bernalillo Muni SD Call Fr, Bond 085279LU9 08/01/2014 99,639
Bernalillo NM MSD 1, Bond 085279N49 08/01/2020 249,047
Grant County Non-Call FR 387766BC1 09/01/2015 288,738
Grants & Cibola County SD Non-Call 388240E18 11/15/2017 202,211
Grants & Cibola County SD NC Fr 388240CH4 10/01/2011 124,923
Grants & Cibola County SD NC Fr 388240CJ0 10/01/2012 125,314
Grantis & Cibola County SD NC Fr 388240CK7 10/01/2013 125,843
Grants & Cibola County SD NONC 388240DW0 11/15/2012 126,127
Las Vegas ISD Non-Call Fr, Bond 51778FCC1 01/15/2015 176,724
Las Vegas NM City Sch Dist BQ 51778FCF4 07/15/2015 249,291
Lea Cnty NM Pub Sch Dist. BQ NC 521513AD3 07/15/2014 201,447
Los Lunas SD Call Tr. 545562K72 07/15/2015 99,933
Pojoaque VY PUB SCH DIST NMBQ NONC 73085PANY9 08/01/2013 202,626
Ruidoso ISD NONC FR 781338GCo 08/01/2011 200,086
Torrance Etc Cnty SD NC Fr 891400KV4 07/15/2011 119,967
Torrance Etc Cnty NM MUN 891400K W2 07/15/2012 124,295
Torrance Etc Cnty MSD Non-Call Fr 891400LU5 07/15/2012 - 100,084
Roosevelt County NONC Fr 776461 AF2 06/01/2012 135,486
Roswell NM Gross Receipts Tax 77854PAEY 06/01/2013 325,892
Taos NM Gross Receipts BQ Call B7601RAL4 06/01/2023 303,841
$5,911,015

Sccurities are held at The Independent Bankers Bank (Dallas, Texas).
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NOTE 3. PLEDGED COLLATERAL (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The
government does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2011, $2,050,000 of the government’s
bank balances of $6,860,004 were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized held by a member bank other than the depositing bank. $0
Uninsured and collateralized held by a member bank other than the depositing bank. 2,050,000
$2,050,000

NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the City’s primary government for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balancé Balance
06/30/2010 Additions Deletions Transfers  06/30/2011

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets:

Non-Depreciable:
Art $122,897 $0 50 $0 $122,897
Land 3,412,322 0 0 30 3,412,322
Construcfion in process 1,595,769 1,866,872 0 (1,859,632) 1,603,009
Depreciable: :
Buildings 11,944,475 16,730 0 _ 0 11,961,205
Land improvements 5,461,916 20,694 0 103,706 5,586,316
Machinery and equipment 5,868,637 301,460 0 (108,005) 6,062,092
Infrastructure 20,861,591 50,218 0 1,157,549 22,069,358
Total - 49,267,607 2,255,974 0 (706,382) 50,817,199
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings 3,158,315 (285,517 0 0 (3,443,832)
Land improvements 1,019,520 (143,887 0 0 (1,163,407)
Machinery and equipment 4,122,331 (372,808) 0 0 (4,495,139
Infrastructure , 3,654,943 (420,192) 0 0 (4,075,135)
Total accumulated depreciation (11,955,109)  (1,222.404) 0 0 (13,177,513)
Net capital assels $37,312,498  $1,033,570 3¢ (3700,382) $37,639,686

Depreciation expense for governmental activities is $1,222,404 for the year.
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINULD)

Balance Balance
06/30/2010 Additions Deletions Transfers  06/30/2011

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets:

Non-Depreciable:

Land $2,279,374 $0 $0 50  $2,279,374

Construction in process 22,903 0 0 356,704 379,607

Water rights 125,612 0 0 0 125,612

Depreciable:

Buildings 2,057,499 3,000 (900) 0 2,059,599

Land improvements 4,048,829 0 0 14,222 4,063,051

Machinery and equipment 2,959,149 499 (4,700) 144,253 3,099,201

Infrastrucfure ' 25,137,382 48,951 0 191,203 25,377,536
Total 36,630,748 52,450 (5,600) 706,382 37,383,980

Less Accumutated Depreciation:

Buildings {845,233) (51,523) 410 0 (896,346)

Land improvements (280,994) {128,374) . 0 0 (409,368)

Machinery and equipment (1,737,531) (296,034) 4,700 0 (2,028,865)

Infrastructure (16,893,199) (365,087) 0 0 (17,258,286)
Total accumulated depreciation (19,756,957) {841,018) 5,110 0 (20,592,865)
Net capital assets $16,873,791  ($788,568) ($420) $706,382 $16,791,115

Loss on asset disposal ($490)

Depreciation expense for business-type activities is $841,018 for the year.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Aclivilies
General Government $1,012,757 $0
Public Safety 114,084 0
Health and Welfare 95,563 0
Water : 0 311,230
Sewer 0 338,552
Golf 0 157,310
Housing 0 33,926
Total $1,222,404 $841,018
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NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following summarized the changes in the long-term debt for government activities during 2011:

Amount

Balance Deletions/ Balance Due Within

06/30/2010  Additions  Transfers 06/30/2011 One Year

Bond payable $555,000 $0  $130,000  $425,000  $140,000
Notes payable 479,194 0 44,350 484,844 44,481
NMTFA —fire truck 203,000 0 46,548 156,452 51,264
Accrued compensated absences 291,897 276,914 192,549 376,262 0
Totals $1,529,091  $276,914  $413,447 $1,392,558  $235,745

Bonds and notes payable have been and are liquidated by gross receipis fax revenues. Accrued compensated absences have
been liquidated in the past by the fund to which the emnployees are assigned. :

Series: New Mexico Finance Authorily
Purpose: 1993 A and B Refunding
Original Issue: $1,495,000

Principal: August 1

Interest: February 1 and August 1

Rates: .620% -3.110%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 $140,000 $10,670 $150,670
2013 140,000 6,596 146,596
2014 145,000 2,255 147,255

Totals $425,000 $19,521 $44,521

-37-



CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Purpose:’ Construction of Building to be leased for use as museum

Date of Issue:  December 1, 1998
Original Issue: $844,445

Prineipal: May 1
Interest: November 1 and May 1
Rate: 3.150% - 5.150%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 $44,481  $20,858  $65,339
2013 49,615 18,835 68,450
2014 49,754 16,526 66,280
2015 49,896 14,176 64,072
2016 55,043 11,801 66,844
2017 —2020 186,055 18,598 204,653

Totals $434,844 $100,794 $535,638
Purpose: Purchase of Fire Truck

Date of Issue:  July 10, 2009
Original Issue: $203,000

Principal: May 1
Interest: November 1 and May 1
Rate: 1.32% - 2.45%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 $51,264 $3,153 $54,417
2013 52,073 2,343 54,416
2014 53,115 1,301 54,416

Totals $156,452 $6,797 $163,249
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The annual principal payment requirements for debt ouvistanding as of June 30, 2011, in governmental activities, are
summarized as follows:

Principal

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Payment
2012 $235,745
2013 241,688
2014 : 247,869
2015 49,896
2016 55,043
2017 - 2020 562,267
$1,392,508

The following summarizes the changes in the Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt during 2011:

Amount Due

Balance Deletions/ Balance  Within One

06/30/2010 Additions Transfers  06/30/2011 Year

Bonds payable $390,000 $0 $125,000 $265,000 $125,000
Notes payable 2,993,777 208,438 348,804 2,853,411 367,916
Leases payable 353,928 0 69,222 284,706 73,300
Accrued compensated absences 67,468 54,194 53,075 68,587 0

Totals $3,805,173 $262,632 $596,101  $3,471,704 $566,216

Bonds outstanding reported in the Proprietary Fund at June 30, 2011, consist of the following issues.

Series: New Mexico Finance Authority
Purpose: Series 1993 Water and Sewer Refunding
Original Issue: $1,060,000

Principal: February 1

Interest: February 1 and August |

Rates: .62%-3.110%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 $125,000 $£8,079 $133,079
2013 140,000 4,354 144,354

Totals $265,000 $12,433 $277,433

-39-




CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Notes outstanding reported in the Proprictary Fund at June 30, 2011, consist of the following:

New Mexico Environmental Department Loan

Purpose: Construction and Acquisition of Equipment for Waste Water Treatment Plant

Original Issue: $6,600,000
Principal: August 15
Interest: August 15

Rates 3.00%

Amortized as follows:

Maturity Principal Interest Total
2012 $355,781 $52,899 $408,680
2013 362,896 45,784 408,680
2014 370,154 38,526 408,680
2015 . 377,557 31,123 408,680
2016 385,108 23,572 408,680
2017-2019 793,477 23,883 817,360

Totals $2,644,973 $215,787  $2,860,760

New Mexico Finance Authority — 194 WTB -

Purpose: Construction of water system improvements along Nimilz Drive.
Original Issue: $168,438

Principal: June 1

Interest: December 1 and June 1

Rates Zero plus .25% administrative fee

Amortized as folloWs:

Fiscal year ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 38,224 $419 38,643
2013 8,244 401 8,645
2014 8,265 380 8,645
2015 8,285 359 8.644
2016 8,306 339 8,645
2017 — 2021 41,845 1,380 43,225
2022 - 2026 42,370 855 43,225
2027 - 2031 42,899 322 43,221

Totals : $168,438 $4,455 $172,893
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

New Mexico Finance Authority — 152 WTB

Purpose: Construction of water system improvements — First Street, Second Street, and Roosevelt Street.
Original Issue:  $40,000 '
Principal: June 1 —

Interest: December 1 and June 1

Rates - Zero plus .25% administrative fee

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal year ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 £3,911 $9s $4,006
2013 1,963 90 2,053
2014 1,968 85 2,053
2015 1,973 80 2,053
2016 ‘ 1,977 : 75 2,052
2017 — 2021 9,960 303 10,263
2022 - 2026 10,085 178 10,263
2027 —-2031 8,163 51 8,214

Totals . $40,000 $957 $40,957

Bank of the West - Lease 7

Purpose: To Purchase Golf Carts
Original Issue: $234,842

Principal: Monthly

Interest: Monthly

Rate: 5.75%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Tolal
2012 $38,021 $8,538 $46,559
2013 40,266 6,293 46,559
2014 42,644 3,915 46,559
2015 44,786 214 45,000

* Totals $165,717 $18,960 $184,677
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Granis State Bank - Lease

Purpose: To Purchase Golf Course Equipment
Original Issue: $178,151

Principal; Monthly

Interest: Monthly

Rate: 5.723%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, ~ Principal Interest Total
2012 $35,279 $5,894 $41,173
2013 37,352 3,821 41,173
2014 : 39,546 1,627 41,173
2015 6,813 48 6,861

Totals $118,990 $11,390 $130,380

The following summarizes the combined aggregate maturities for long-term borrowing in the Propuelaly FFund for the next
five years following June 30, 2011:

Principal

June 30, - Payment
2012 $566,215
2013 _ 590,721
2014 462,577
2015 ' 439,414
2016 395,391
2017 - 2019 1,017,386
Total - $3,471,704

Lease Purchase Contracts
At June 30, 2011 the City had machinery and equipment capitafized under purchase agreements, as follows:

Machinery and equipment $513,444

Of the total interest cost incurred on long-term debt of $142,786 none was capitalized at June 30, 2011,
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JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 6, INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Transactions

There are transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially expended from one fund that are
properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditure

.in the fund that is reimbursed.

Interfund payables and receivables are reflected in the appropriate fund.

Interfund Transfers In (Qut)

Transfers Out

Nonmajor Nonmajor
General Governmental Proprietary
Fund Funds Utilities Funds Totals
Transfers In: :
General fund $199,384 $0 $0 $0 $199,384 .
General governmental improvements 650,000 0 200,000 0 850,000
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,051,812 570,112 : 0 0 1,621,924
Utilities 144,585 0 920,874 0 1,065,459
Golf course 0 0 398,000 0 398,000
Nonmajor proprictary fonds 0 8,055 0 13,528 21,583
Totals $2,045,781 $578,167 $1,518,874 $13,528  $4,156,350
Capital Transfers In (Ouf) Transfers Ont
- General Nonmajor
Government Proprietary
Improvements Utilities Funds Totals
Transfers In:
Utilities $706,382 348,951 30 $755,333
Nonmajor proprietary funds 0 0 112 112
Totals $706,382 $48,951 5112 $755,445
Due I'rom (to) Other Funds Due To
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds Totals
Due From:
General fund $4,500 $4,500
Nonmajor proprietary funds 26,676 26,676
Totals $31,176 $31,176
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NOTE 7. PERA PENSION PLAN

Plan Description. Substantially all of the City of Grants’ full-time employees participate in a public employee retirement
system authorized under the Public Employces Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978). The Tublic
Employees Retirement Association (PERA) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement, disability benefits, survivor benefits, and cost- of-living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes
financial statemen(s and required supplementary information for the plan. The report may be obtained by writing to PERA,
P.O. Box 2123, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-2123. The report is also available on PERA’s website at
www.pera.state.nm.us.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required fo contribute 9.15% of their gross salary, police confribute 7.0% and fire
employees contribute 8.0%. The City of Granis is required to contribute 18.5% for police employees, 17.5% for fire
employees, and 9.15% for other employees of the gross salaries. The contribution requirements of plan members and the
City of Grants are established in State statute under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978. The requirements may be
amended by acts of the legislature. The City of Grants contributions to PERA for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2011,
2010 and 2009 respectively were $335,418, $319,154, and $295,533, which equal the amount of the required contributions
for each fiscal year. '

NOTE 8. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City of Grants has chosen not fo participate in Retiree Health Care or any other post employment benefit program.

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Audit

The City receives Federal and State Grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the funding
agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement by the agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms

and conditions of the appropriate agency. In the opinion of the City management, such disallowances, if any, will not be
significant.
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JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 10. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require dlsclosure as part of the basic financial
statements, of certain information concerning individual funds including;:

1. Net Working Capital:

Enterprise Fund:

Utility $1,8438,329 -

Low Rent $65,559 -

Golf Course ($41,796) .
2, Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:

Low Rent — Enterprise Fund ($11,373)
3. Deficit Fund Balance:

General Government Improvements ($6,911)-

(To be refunded with general fund transfers and subsequent year revenue.) '

NOTE 11. SURETY BOND

Surety bonds are in force per the following schedule:

Insurance Company Type of Bond Coverage From - To  Coverage Limits
Western Surety Position 09/30/2010 $10,000 each on Cashiers, Mayor, Pro-Tem
09/30/2011 Mayor, Project Assistant
Western Surety Employee Theft/ 07/01/2010 $10,000 each incident
Dishonesty 06/30/2011 $20,000 apgregate all employees
Western Surefy Municipal Judge 08/24/2010 City Manager - $50,000
Bond 08/24/2011 Municipal Judge - $50,000
National Union Airport 07/01/2010 $10,000 each incident
. 06/30/2011
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 12. FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

The City has defined fund balance classifications for governmental funds as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — includes amounts that by their nature are not expendable such as inventories, prepaids
and long-term notes receivable.

Restricted Fund Balance — includes amounts that have constraints placed on their use which are:

externally imposed by:
s Creditors (such as debt covenants)
¢ (ranfors
Contributors
Laws or repulations of other governments (state and federal)

OR
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Enabling legistation authorizes the City fo assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources
(from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be
used only for the specific purpose stipulated in the legislation. Legal enforceability means that a
government can be compelled by an external party — such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary - to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the
legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal resolution of the City’s Council. These commilted amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless the
government removes or changes the specified use by resolution (the same type of action taken to commit the funds).

Assigned Fund Balance — includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes; but
-are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the City Council, a finance or budget committee, or the City
Manager to which the Council has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned Fund Balance — includes amounts in the General Fund that have not been classified in any other fund
balance category noted above.

Hierarchy of Application of Expenditures

* The City will apply restricted resources first when an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance or net assets is available.

 The City will apply committed resources first, then assigned, then unassigned when an expenditure is incurred for which
amounts in any of these unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
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NOTE 12, FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS (CONTINUED)

The classification of governmental fund balances arc as follows:

Major
Special Revenue
General F'und  Fund — Road Other Funds " Total
Fund Balances: '
Nonspendable:
Tnventory $o $0 $0 - $0
Restricted for:
Cemetery care 0 0 108,703 108,703
Health and social services 0 0 18,261 18,261
Streets and parks 0 0 934,183 934,183
Housing 0 0 399,745 399,745
Fire protection 0 0 73,840 73,840
Library 0 0 18,075 18,075
Law enforcement and corrections 0 0 72,934 72,934
Recreation and promotion 0 0 175,385 175,385
Debt service 0 0 637,812 637,812
Committed To: ‘
Judgements/settlements 177,269 0 0 177,269
Assigned To:
Senior activitics 0 0 33,971 33,97
Cily maintenance/projects : 0 0 646,218 646,218
Unassigned 7,001,065 (6,911) 0 16,994,154
Total fund balances $7,178,334 ($6,911) $3,119,127  $10,290,550

NOTE 13. PARTICTPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL

The City is a member of the New Mexico Self-Insurers’ Fund (the “Fund™). The Fund was created to formulate, develop,
and administer a program of modified self-funding for the Fund’s membership, obtain lower costs for insurance coverage,
and develop a comprehensive loss control program. The City pays an annual premium to the Fund for its workers’
compensation liability, general liability, auto liability, auto physical damage, and property coverage, The City’s agreement
with the Fund provides that the Fund will be self-sustaining through member premiums, and will provide, through
commercial companies reinsurance contracts, individual stop loss coverage for member cities.

The City paid premiums of $425,911 for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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NOTE 14, OPERATING LEASES

The City of Grants has entered into two thirty-six (36) month operating leases with IBM covering an “AS/400” computer
and 2000 LPM Matrix printer and various peripherals calling for monthly payments of $1,416. The leases were renewed
April 1, 2011 for one year.

The City of Grants has entered into two 48-month operating leases with Lanier World (now Ricoh) covering copiers calling
for monihly payments of $144 and $275 beginning January 2008.

The City of Grants has enfered into 48 month operating leases with Lanier World (now Ricoh) covering a copier for city
hall calling for monthly payments of $405 beginning May 2011.

The City of Grants has entered into a 12 month operating lease with Sunguard Hte, Inc. covering a software lease calling for
an annual payment of $33,558 beginning May 2011.

The City of Grants has entered into a 48 month operating lease with Ricoh covering a copier with monthly payments of
$647 beginning October 2008.

The City of Grants has entered into a 48 month operating lease with Ricoh for a Aficio MP C2050 printer with monthly
payments of $128 beginning July 2010.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

' Fiscal Year Amount
2012 $24,962
-2013 6,396
2014 : 6,396
 Total $37,754

All of above leases contain provisions for termination in the event budgetary constraints prevent the City from meeting
financed obligations under said leases.
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NOTE 15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City issued revenue bonds to finance the construction and improvements of the water and waste water (sewer) facilities.
Both the water and sewer departments are accounted for in the utilities fund, which also accounts for refuse services.
However, the revenue bonds rely solely on the revenue generated by the water and sewer activities for repayment.
Summary financial information for the water and sewer departments is presented below.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Water Sewer
Assels:
Current assets ($1,172,097) $568,491
Restricted assets 816,501 386,746
Capital assets 7,663,910 7,326,558
Total assefs 7,308,314 8,281,795
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 571,694 300,003
Noncurrent liabilities 1,423,646 1,224,159
Total liabilities 1,995,340 1,524,162
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,208,923 5,871,571
Restricted 597,399 386,746
Unrestricted (1,493,348) 499,316
Total net assels $5,312,974 $6,757,633

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AN} CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Water Sewer

Water/sewer charges, pledged against bonds $2,099,866 $1,842,204
Depreciation expense (311,230) (338,552)
Operating expense (1,931,747) {1,698,217)
Operating income (143,110) (194,475)

Interest income _ 3,062 3,062
Interest expense and other debt expense (36,728) (35,752)
Operating transfers, net (151,138) (151,138)
Capital transfers, net 527,486 178,896
Change in net assets 199,572 {199,407)
Beginning net assets 5,113,403 6,957,040
Ending net assets $5,312,974 $6,757,633
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 15. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

: Water Sewer

Net Cash Provided (Used) By: :

Operating activities $168,781 $136,744
Noncapital financing activifies (151,138) (151,138)
Capital and related financing activities (65,192) (321,599)
Investing activitics 3,062 3,062

Net increase (decrease) (44,487) (332,931)

Beginning cash and cash equivalents (589,221) 1,113,377
Ending cash and cash equivalents ($633,708) $780,446
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash (included in current assets) ($1,450,209) $393,700
Cash (restricted assets) 816,501 386,746

($633,708) $780,446
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JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 16, COMMITMENTS

The City had outstanding construction contracts at June 30, 2011.

Contract Spentto Commitment Source of

Amount Date  Remaining Payment
Exerplay Inc.
Park Improvements $2,745 $0 $2,745 City
Bixby Electric
Airport Improvements $186,175 $2,051 $184,124 Federal, State, City
Armstrong Consultants '
Airport Improvements $37,756 $20,237 $17,519 Federal
Wilson & Company '
Street Improvements $142,475 $141,229 $1,246 State
Torsgren & Associates ,
Wastewater Treatment Plant $55,631 $14,425 $41,206 City
Wilson & Company :
Water Well $52,945 $29,808 $23,137 City
Mullen Heller Architecture
Library Renovation $15,160 $0 $15,160 State
Wilson & Company :
Sewer Replacement $134,028 $103,010 $31,018 State
TLC Plumbing
Sewer Replacement $846,753 $0 $846,753 State
TLC Plumbing
: Nimitz Il $945,200 $246,790 $698,410 : State
Rodgers & Co.
Water Well $342,742 $0 $342,742 State/City
Wilson & Company
Street Improvements $22,595 $10,089 . $12,506 State
Wilson & Company
Cemetery Expansion $83,138 $42,385 $40,753 City
Mountain West Golf Scapes .
Skate park $175,038 $36,583 $138,455 City
Wilson & Company
Street Improvements $224,965 $150,469 $74,496 City
Air Pros Heating/Cooling
Fire Station Improvements $72,166 $0 $72,166 State
Wilson & Company
Street Improvements $49,126 $46,114 $3,012 State
Wilson & Company
Street Improvements $19,980 $0 $19,980 City
$2,565,428
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NOTE 16. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The City has entered into a settlement agreement as a result of a number of residents that objected to the issuance of a
permit for ground water discharge. The residents complained of high ground water problems at their propertics outside the
city limits allegedly caused at least in part by the City’s operation of the Wastewater Treatment Facility and Coyote de Mal
Pais Golf Course. As part of the settlement, the City purchased some homes and began the process of making payments
into a settlement fund. All payments required to date have been made. As of June 30, 2011, the City has paid $568,330 in
accordance with the agreement. The City has received insurance proceeds in the amount of $125,000 to offset these costs.
In addition, the City will need to construct a ground water drain and acquire some additional land for that purpose. We are
unable fo predict the cost of this project because NMED has not approved the ground water drain plans at this time.

NOTE 17. ENABLING LEGISLATION

Tn 2010/2011, the City of Grants enacted enabling legislation to create a special gross receipts tax. The legislation specified
that the proceeds of this tax could be used only to finance street and parks improvements. The City determined that the
resiriction was legally enforceable. The government-wide statement of net assets prepared by the City for the year ended

June 30, 2011, included the following information:

Net assets restricted for:
Street and parks improvement $943,183
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CITY OF GRANTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Special Revenue Funds -

Special Revenue Funds are nsed to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than expendable trusts and
major capital projects that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Cemetery Perpetual Care — To account for the portion of the sale of cemetery lots fo be used for the perpetual care and
maintenance of the city cemetery. Authorized by city resolution and NMSA 3-40-1.

Cibola Senior Citizens — To account for state and federal funding for senior programs -authorized by federal regulations.

Emergency Medical Services — To account for the state funding for the acquisition of emergency medical equipment.
Authority NMSA 24-10A-1.

Fire Protection — To account for the state funding and for the acquisition and maintenance of adequate fire protection
facilities in the Grants-Milan area. Authority NMSA 59A-53-1.

Foster Grandparents Program — To account for state funding for senior citizens. Authorized by cily resolution.

Gasoline Road Tax — To account for state funds for maintenance of roads. Authorized as a special revenue fund by city
resolution and NMSA 7-1-6.9. .

GRT Street & Parks Improvement — To account for gross receipts tax increment specifically earmarked for street and parks
improvements authorized by City resolution.

Housing Authority Capital Funds Program — To account for federal funding made available by Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) to Public Housing Authorities for their capital activities, including modemization and development of
public housing. Financing is authorized by federal regulations.

Housing Authority Vouchers — To account for the Federal funding assistance payments and modernization provided by
HUD, Section 8 grants used for housing rental of homes. Financing is authorized by Federal regulations.

Juvenile Recreation — To account for the revenues generatéd by cigarette taxes, which are restricted fo expenditures for
recreational purposes. Authority NMSA 7-12-15.

Law Enforcement Protection — To account for the state funding for law enforcement, which is used to provide adequate
police protection. Authority NMSA 29-13-3.

Litter Control and Beautification — To account for funding for cleanup and beautification from the State Highway
Department. Authorized by city resolution and NMSA 67-16-14.

Local Government Corrections — To account for state grant monies received by the municipality for prisoner care.
Authority NMSA 33-3-25.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Lodgers’ Tax — To account for the collection and administration of the lodgers® tax which is imposed on overnight motel
-and motel accommodations. Authority NMSA 3-38-14.

Lodgers’ Tax Promotional -- To account for the expenditure of lodgers’ tax funds, which are used to promote commerce and
tourism, Authority NMSA 3-38-14.

Senior Companion Program — To account for provision of nutrition services, fransportation, information, and referrals.
Authorized by city resolution.

Senior Employment Program — To account for state funding for the employment of sentors. Authorized by city resolution.

Special Library Donation — To account for memorial donations and the purchase of books for the library. Authorized by
city resolution.

State and Tocal (S & L) Narcotics Assistance Control Program — To account for the Federal funding for law enforcement
activities against narcotics use and trafficking. Authorized enforcement by Federal regulations PI. 99-570.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2011 '

Cemetery Cibola Emergency
Perpetual Senior ‘Medical Fire Foster
Care Citizens Services Protection Grandparents
ASSETS
Cash $108,703 $22,265 $3,810 $75,130 $3,567
Accounts receivable 0 0 0 0 0
Grant revenue receivable 0 24,889 0 0 2,148
Due from other funds 0 0 0 0 0
Other deferred charges 0 0 0 0 0
Total assets $108,703 $47,154 $3,810 $75.130 $5,715
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $0 $0 $1,290 $0
Accrued payroll ' 0 13,183 0 0 694
Deferred revenue 0 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 0 0 0 0
Tolal liabilities 0 . 13,183 0 1,290 . 694
Fund Balance:
Restricted 108,703 0 3,810 73,840 5,021
Committed ) 0 0 0 0 0
Assigned 0 33,971 0 0 0
Total fund balance 108,703 33,971 3,810 73,840 5,021
Total liabilities and fund balance $108,703 $47,154 $3,810 $75,130 $5.715

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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| CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Housing
GRT Authority
Street & Capital Housing
Gasoline Parks Funds - Authority Juvenile
Road Tax Improvement Program Vouchers  Recreation

ASSETS
Cash $646,218 $934,183 $0 $315,556 $92,138
Accounts receivable 0 0 0 0 0
Grant revenue receivable -0 0 21,907 0 0
Due from other funds 0 0 0 0 0
Other deferred charges 0 0 0 0 0

Total assets ' $646,218 $934,183 $21,907 $315,556 $92,138
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $0 $0 $2,234 $0
Accrued payroll 0 0 0 946 0
Deferred revenue 0 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 0 21,907 4,769 0

Tofal liabilities 0 0 21,907 7,949 0
Fund Balance:
Restricted 0 934,183 0 307,607 02,138
Committed 0 0 0 0 0
Assigned 646,218 0 0 0 0

Tofal fund halance 646,218 934,183 0 - 307,607 92,138

Total liabilities and fund balance $646,218 $934,183 $21,907 $315,556 $92,138

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Law Litter Local Lodgers'
Enforcement Controland Government  Lodgers' Tax
Protection Beautification Corrections Tax Promotional
ASSETS _
Cash $8,869 $501 $31,659 $106,833 $84,109
Accounts receivable 27,200 0 -0 33,085 0
Grant revenue receivable 0 0 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 0 0 0 0
Other deferred charges ‘ 0 0 0 0 0
Total assets . $36,069 $501 $31,659 $139,918 $84,109
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 50 $0 $14,646 $20,023 $28,619
Accrued payroll 0 0 0 0 0
Deferred revenue 0 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 0] 0 0 0
Tolal liabilities 0 0 14,646 20,023 28,619
Fund Balance:
Restricted 36,069 501 17,013 119,895 55,490
Committed ' : 0 0 0 0 -0
Assigned : 0 0 0 0 0
Tofal fund balanc 36,069 501 17,013 119,895 55,490
Total liahilities and fund balance ' $36,069 $501 $31,659 $139,918 $84,109

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2011

State
and Local
Senior Senior Special Narcotics
Companion Employment Library  Assistance
Program Program Donation Control Totals

ASSETS
Cash $329 $399 $18,075 $19,852 $2,472,196
Accounts receivable 0 0 0 0 60,285
Grant revenue receivable 9,508 3,439 0 0 61,891
Due from other funds 0 0 0 0 0
Other deferred charges 0 0 0 0 0

Total assets $9,837 $3,838 $18,075 $19.852 $2,594,372
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities: '
Accounts payable $0 $0 $0 $0 $66,812
Accrued payroll 0 246 0 0 15,069
Deferred revenue 0 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 3,000 1,500 0 0 31,176

Tolal liabilities 3,000 1,746 0 0 113,057
Fund Balance:
Restricted : - 6,837 2,092 18,075 19,852 1,801,126
Committed ' 0 0 0 0 0
Assigned : 0 0 0 0 680,189

Total fund balance 6,837 2,092 18,075 19,852 2,481,315

Total liabilities and fund balance $9.837 $3.838 $18,075 $19,852 $2,594,372

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY-OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cemetery Cibola Emergency
Perpetual Senior Medical Fire Foster
Care Citizens Services Protection Grandparents
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $0 $294,867 $13,435 -$158,936 $66,371
Property tax 0 0 0 0 0
Lodgers' tax 0 0 0 0 0
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 0 0 0 ] 0
Fees 0 17,208 0 0 0
Investment income 345 0 0 252 0
Sales of property 11,480 0 4] 0 0
Donations 50 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 95 0 0 0
Tolal revenues 11,876 - 312,170 13,435 159,188 66,371
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 0 0
Public safety 0 0 9,932 80,762 0
Public works 0 0 0 0 0
Health and welfare 6,246 348,215 0 0 66,597
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 0 .0 0 0 -0
Tolal expendilires 6,246 348,215 9,932 80,762 86,597
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendilures ' 5,629 (36,045) 3,503 78,426 (226)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 50,000 0 0 0
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 {53,434) 0
Tolal other financing sources (uses) 0 50,000 0 {53,434) 0
Net changes in fund balances 5,629 13,955 3,503 24,992 (226)
Fund balance, beginning of year 103,074 20,016 307 48,848 5,247
Fund balance {(deficit), end of year $108,703 $33,971 $3,810 $73,840 $5,021

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
: NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
‘ FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Housing
GRT Authority
Street & Capital Housing
Gasoline Parks Funds Authority Juvenile
Road Tax Improvement  Program Vouchers  Recreation
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $120,000 $0 $17,952 $366,408 $0
Propenrty tax 0 0 0 0 0
Lodgers' tax 0 0 0 0 0
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 123,356 0 0 0 766
Fees 0 0 0 0 0
Investment income 2,501 1,741 0 262 306
Sales of property 0 0 0 0 0
Donations 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 10,000 0 0 576 0
Total revenues 255,857 1,741 17,952 367,246 1,072
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 0 0
Public safely 0 0 0 0 0
Public works 613,064 0 0 0 0
Health and welfare 0 0 2,644 283,241 0
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 0 0 7,253 0 0
Total expenditures 613,064 - 0 9,897 283,241 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (357,207) 1,741 8,055 84,005 1,072
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in 200,000 b77639 0 0 0
Operating transfers {ouf) 0 0 (8,055) 0 .0
Tolal other financing sources {uses) 200,000 577,639 (8,055) 0 0
Net changes in fund balances {157,207) 579,380 0 84,005 1,072
Fund balance, beginning of year 803,425 364,803 0 223,602 91,066
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $646,218 $934,183 $0 $307,607 $92,138

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Law Liteer Local Lodgers'
Enforcement Controland Government  Lodgers' Tax
Protection  Beautification Corrections Tax Promotional
REVENUES '
Intergovernmental $27,200 $4,800 $0 $0 $0
Property tax 0 0 0 0 0
Lodgers' tax 0 0 0 417,248 0
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 0 0 0 0 0
Fees 0 0 40,285 0 0
Investment income 0 0 0 316 0
Sales of property 0 0 0 0 0
Donations 0 0 ] 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0
Tolal revenues 27,200 4800 40,285 417,564 0
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 73,878 0
Public safety 2,066 0 94,054 0 0
Public works 0 0 0 0 0
Health and welfare 0 5,500 0 0 0
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0 327,476
Capital outlay 21,144 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 23,210 5,500 94,054 73,878 327,476
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over .
expendifures ' 3,990 {700) (53,769) 343,686 (327,476)
Other Financing Sources {(Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 60,000 0 318,300
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 {368,300) 0
Tolal other financing sources (uses) 0 0 60,000 {368,300) 318,300
Nef changes in fund balances 3,990 (700) 6,231 (24,614) (9,176)
Fund balance, beginning of year 32,079 1,201 10,782 144,509 64,666
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $36,069 $501 $17.013 $119,895 $55,490

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Stdle
and Local
Senior Senior Special Narcotics
Companion Employment Library Assistance
Program Program Donation Control Totals
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $79,465 $31,192 $0 $0 $1,180,626
Property tax 0 0 0 0 0
Lodgers' tax 0 0 1] 0 417,248
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 0 0 0 0 124,122
Fees 0 0 0 0 57,493
Investment income 0 0 53 0 5,776
Sales of property 0 0 0 0 11,480
Donations 1] 0 1,120 0 1,170
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 10,671
Total ravenues 79,465 31,192 1,173 0 1,808,586
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 0 73,878
Public safety 0 0 0 0 186,814
Public works 0 0 0 0 613,064
Health and welfare 77,841 29,680 0 0 819,964
Culture and recreation 0 0 24 0 327,500
Capital outlay 0 0 0 21,144 49 541
Tolal expenditures 77,841 29,680 24 21,144 2,070,761
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 1,624 1,512 1,149 (21,144) (262,175)
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0 1,205,939
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 0 {429,789)
Tofal other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0 776,150
Net changes in fund balances 1,624 1,612 1,149 (21,144) 513,975
Fund balance, beginning of year 5,213 580 16,926 40,996 1,967,340
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $6,837 $2,092 $18,075 $19,852 $2,481,315

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES .
Sale of lots $7,000 $7,000 $11,480 $4,480
Interest on investmants 0 0 345 345
Donations 0 0 50 50

Tolal revenues 7,000 7,000 11,875 4,875
EXPENDITURES
Personnel . 0 0 0 0
Operating 0 0 6,246 (6,246)
Capital outiay 75,000 75,000 0 75,000

Tolal expenditures’ 75,000 75,000 6,246 68,754
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {68,000) (68,000) $5,629 $73,629
Budgeted cash carryover 68,000 68,000

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $5,629
Adjustments for revenue accruals . 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals ' 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expsnditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $5,629

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
CIBOLA SENIOR CITIZENS FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $289,314 $289,314 $318,028 $29,614
Fees and charges 19,747 19,747 17,208 {2,539)
Other revenue 1,000 1,000 95 (905)
Tolal revenues 310,061 310,081 336,231 26,170
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 191,752 191,752 186,962 4,790
Operating 163,021 163,021 161,550 1,471
Capital outlay _ ' ' 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 354,773 354,773 348,512 . 6,261
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures (44,712) (44,712) (12,281) 32,431
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
Operaling transfers (out) 0 0 0 0
Tofal other financing sources (uses) ' 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of reventies over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses) $5,288 $5,288 $37,719 $32,431
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
E'xcess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and'
other financing sources (uses) $37,719
Adjustments for revenue accruals {24,061)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 297
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $13,955

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $7,993 $7,993 $13,435 $5,442
Interest on investments ' 0 - 0 0 0
Total revenues 7,993 7,993 13,435 5,442
'EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 _ 0 0 0
Operating 0 9,933 9,932 1
Capital outlay 8,300 0 0 0
Tolal expendilures 8,300 9,933 9,932 1
 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (307) (1,940) $3,503 $5,443
Budgeted cash carryover 307 307
$0 ($1,633)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $3,503
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals : 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $3,603

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FIRE PROTECTION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $123,334 $123,334 $158,936 $35,602
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0
Interest on investments 0 0 2562 252

Tolal revenues 123,334 123,334 159,188 - 35,854
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 64,797 - 64,797 . 19,472 {14,675)
Capital outlay 51,685 51,685 0 51,6856

Tolal expenditures 116,482 116,482 79,472 37,010
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 6,852 6,852 79,716 72,864
Cther Financing Sources (Uses): :
Operating transfers {out) (55,700) (65,700) (63,434) 2,266
Excess (deﬁcfency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) (48,848) {48,848) $26,282 $75,130
Budgeted cash carryover “ 48,848 48,848

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $26,282
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (1,290)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $24,992

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FOSTER GRANDPARENTS PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
_ Intergovernmental $77.863 $77,863 $71,336° ($6,527)
EXPENDITURES :
Personnel 22,668 22,668 59,683 (36,915)
Operating 46,103 46,103 6,788 39,315
Capital outiay 0 0 0 0
Tolal expendilures 68,771 68,771 66,371 2,400
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures $9,092 . $9,092 $4,965 ($4,127)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $4,965
Aﬁjustments for revenue accruals (4,965)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (226)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$226)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GASOLINE ROAD TAX FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favecrable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $520,000 $520,000 $120,000 ($400,000)
Property tax 0 0 0 0
State shared taxes 105,000 105,000 123,356 18,356
Interest on investments -0 0 2,601 2,501
Miscellaneous revenue 0 0 10,000 10,000

Tofal revenues 625,000 625,000 255,857 (369,143)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 78,959 78,959 78,959 0
Operating 1,230,000 1,230,000 731,869 498,131
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Total expendilures 1,308,959 1,308,959 810,828 498,131
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (683,959) (683,959) {554,971) 128,988
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 200,000 200,000 200,000 0
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 0

Total other financing sources (uses) 200,000 200,000 200,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) {483,959) (483,859) ($354,971) $128,988
Budgeted cash carryover 483,959 483,959

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financial sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary) ($354,971)
Adjustments for revenue accruals, transfers, earnings on

investments 0
Adjustments for expenditures for payables, inventory, other

expenditure accruals 197,764
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources _

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$157,207)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GRT STREET & PARKS IMPROVEMENTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Interest on investments $2,500 $2,500 $1,741 ($759)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 600,000 600,000 0 600,000

Total expenditures - 600,000 600,000 0 600,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (597,500) (5697,500) 1,741 599,241
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 390,000 577,640 577,639 (1)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) {207,500) (19,860) $579,380 $599,240
Budgeted cash carryover 207,500 19,860

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recanciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $579,380
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and cther financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $5679,380

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
HOUSING AUTHORITY CAPITAL FUNDS PROGRAM
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $113,946 $113,946 $17,952 ($95,994)
Iinterest on investments 0 0 0 0
Tolal revenues 1 13,946‘ 113,946 17,952 (95,994)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 61,180 61,180 2,644 58,636
Capital outiay 52,766 52,766 7,253 45,513
Tolal expenditures 113,946 113,946 9,897 104,049
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 0 8,055 8,055
Other Financing Sources (Uses): .
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 {8,055) (8,055)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0 . $0 30 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ‘ %0

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
HOUSING AUTHORITY VOUCHERS FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND '
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES ‘
Intergovernmental $500,000 $500,000 $366,408 ($133,592)
Interest on investments 0 0 262 262
Miscellaneous income 0 0 576 576

Tolal revenues 500,000 500,000 367,246 (132,754)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 15,810 16,810 14,940 870
Operating 20,000 20,000 17,334 2,666
Housing assistance payments 504,000 504,000 250,967 253,033
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Tolal expenditures 539,810 539,810 283,241 256,569
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures | (39,810) {39,810) $84,005 $123,815
Budgeted cash carryover 39,810 39,810

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $84,005
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expendilures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $84,005

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
JUVENILE RECREATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Qriginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
State shared taxes $0 $0 $766 $766
Interest on investments 0 0 306 306
Tolal revenues 0 0 1,072 1,072
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 60,000 60,000 0 60,000
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Tolal expenditires 60,000 60,000 0 60,000
Excess (deﬁciency) of revenues over expenditures (60,000) {60,000} $1,072 $61,072
Budgeted cash carryover 60,000 60,000
$0 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $1,072
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
$1,072

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {(Unfavorable)
Budget - Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES '
Intergovernmental $27,200 $27,200 $27,200 $0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 27,200 27,200 27,200 0
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 11,280 11,280 2,066 9,214
Capital outiay 20,800 20,800 21,144 (344)

Tolal expenditures 32,080 32,080 . 23,210 8,870
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendiltures (4,880) (4,880) $3,900 $8,870
Budgeted cash carryover 4,880 4,880

- $0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $3,990
Adjustments for revenue accruals 1]
Adjustments for expenditures accruals , 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $3,990

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

LITTER CONTROL AND BEAUTIFICATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $7.,100 $7,100 $8,100 $1,000
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 7,100 7,100 0 7,100
Operating 0 0 5,500 (5,500)
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 7,100 7,100 5,500 - 1,600
$0 $0

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

$2,600 $2,600

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongiliation:

‘Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
-other financing sources (uses)

Adjustments for revenue accruals

Adjustments for expenditures accruals

$2,600

(3,300)

-Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expendilures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

($700)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORRECTIONS FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final

Favorabie
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES :
Court fees $80,000 $80,000 $40,285 ($39,715)
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0
Tolal revenues 80,000 80,000 40,285 (39,715)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 130,000 130,000 88,303 41,697
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Tolal expenditures 130,000 130,000 88,303 . 41,697
Excess (deficiency) of revenue$ over expenditures (50,000) - (50,000) (48,018) 1,982
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (in) 60,000 60,000 60,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and :
other financing sources (uses) $10,000 $10,000 $11,982 $1,982
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconcifliation:
Excess (dsficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
Lother financing sources (Uses) $11,982
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals {5,751)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $6,231

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LODGERS' TAX FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {(Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES : _
Lodgers' tax $340,000 $340,000 $428,852 $68,852
Interest on investments 0 0 316 316

Total revenues 340,000 340,000 429,168 89,168
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 a 0
Operating 66,119 66,119 53,855 12,264
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Tofal expendifures 66,119 66,119 53,855 12,264
Excess (deficiency) of revenues‘over expenditures 273,881 273,881 375,313 101,432
Other Finanéing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (out) (368,300) {368,300) (368,300) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (t1ses) _ (94,419) (24,419) $7,013 $101,432
Budgeted cash carryover 94 419 94,419

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $7,013
Adjustments for revenue accruals (11,604)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (20,023)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ' ($24,614)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LODGERS' TAX PROMOTIONAL FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES : $0 $0 $0 $0
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 : 0 0 0
Operating 351,300 351,300 298,857 - 52,443
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Tolal expenditures 351,300 351,300 298,857 52,443
Excess (deficiency) of reventies over expenditures - (351,300) {(351,300) (298,857) 52,443
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 318,300 318,300 318,300 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures and
other financing sources (uses) (33,000) (33,000) $19,443 $52,443
Budgeted cash carryover 33,000 33,000

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reparting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $19,443
Adjustments for revenue accruals ‘ 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals {28,619)
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss and other financing sources ,

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($9,176)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES .
Intergovernmental $101,184 $101,184 $83,308 {(3$17,876)
EXPENDITURES :
Personnel 27618 27,618 69,724 (42,106)
Operaling 53,860 53,860 9,753 44107
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total expendilures 81,478 81,478 79,477 2,001
Excess (deficiency) of reventies over expenditures $19,706 $19,706 $3,831 ($15,875)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (Uses) $3,831
Adjustments for revenue accruals (3,843)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 1,636
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $1,624

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SENIOR EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $40,491 $40,491 $31,523 ($8,968) -
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 35,384 35,384 31,182 4,202
Operating 0 0 0 0
Tolal expendiltires 35,384 35,384 31,182 4,202
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures $5,107 $5,107 $341 ($4,766)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) _ $341
Adjustments for revenue accruals (331)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 1,602
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) 31,512

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SPECIAL LIBRARY DONATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
| FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget _Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES ‘
Donations ' $500 $500 $1,120 $620
Interest on investments 200 200 53 (147)

Tolal revenues 700 700 1,173 473
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 3,500 3,500 24 3,476
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 0 5,000

Tolal expendilitres 8,500 8,500 24 8,476
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (7.800) (7,800) $1,149 $8,949
Budgeted cash carryover 7,800 7,800

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Repoiting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures and

other financing sources {uses) $1,149
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

$1,149

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

STATE AND LOCAL NARCOTICS ASSISTANCE CONTROL PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorahle
Approved Approved {(Unfavorable)
. Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $25,000 $25,000 $0 ($25,000)
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 25,000 25,000 0 (25,000)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 60,000 60,000 0 60,000
Operating 5,000 5,000 0 5,000
Capital outiay 0 0 21,144 (21,144)

Total expenditures 65,000 65,000 21,144 43,856
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over expenditures (40,000) (40,000) ($21,144) $18,856
Budgeted cash carryover 40,000 40,000

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (Uses) ($21,144)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($21,144)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.




CITY OF GRANTS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest, and related costs.

GRT Income Fund — To accumulate funds for payment of principal and interest.

GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund 1993 A — To accumulate funds for payment of refunding debt.

GRT Revenue Bond Reserve Fund 1993 A — To accumulate funds per refunding bond agreement to insure future payment.

NMFA Loan — To accumuiate funds for payment of loan to be paid from proceeds of a statewide gross receipts tax
distributed by the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department.

NMFA Reserve — To accumulate funds for payment of loan to be paid from proceeds of gross receipts tax.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2011

GRT GRT
GRT Revenue Revenue -
Income Bond Bond NMFA ~ NMFA

Fund Debt Service Reserve Loan Reserve Totals
ASSETS ,
Cash 7 $0 $131,760 30 $0 $0  $131,760
Cash held with trustee 0 174,849 149,522 117,351 64,230 506,052

Total assets $0 $306,709 $149,522 $117,351 $64,230 $637,812

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Fund Balance:

Restricted 0 306,709 149,622 117,351 64,230 637,812
Total fund balance 0 306,709 149,522 117,351 64,230 637,812
Total liabilities and fund balance $0 $306,709  $149,522 $117,351 $64,230 $637,812

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

GRT GRT
GRT Revenue Revenue
Income Bond Bond NMFA NMFA
Fund Debt Service  Reserve Loan Reserve Totals

REVENUES : :
Taxes $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Investment income 0 208 122 331 55 714

Total revenues 206 122 331 55 714
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Principal 0 130,000 0 90,898 0 220,898
Interest 0 14,367 0 22,838 0 37,205

. Fees 0 1,225 0 8,084 0 9,309

Tolal expenditures 0 145,692 0 121,820 0 267,412

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 0 (145,386) 122 {121,489) B5 (266,698)

Other Financing Sources {Uses): .
Operating transfers in 144,367 144,727 _ 0 126,891 0 415,985
Operating transfers (out) {144,367) 0 (360) 0 (3,651) (148,378)

Total other financing sources (uses) 0 144,727 (360) 126,891 (3,651) 267,607
Net changes in fund balances 0 (659) (238) 5,402 (3,596) 909
Fund balance, beginning of year 0 307,368 149,760 111,949 67,826 636,903
Fund balance, end of year $0 $306,709  $149,522 $117,351 $64,230 $637,812

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.




CITY OF GRANTS
GRT INCOME FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {(Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES :
Interest on investments $0 30 30 $0 .
EXPENDITURES
Paying agent fees 0 0 0 0
Bond interest 0 0 0 0
Bond principal 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures- 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 0 0 0
Other Financing Sources (Uses): .
Operating transfers in 144,367 144,367 144,367 0
Operating {ransfers {ouf) (144,367) (144,387) {144, 367) 0
Tolaf other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses) $0 $0 $0 ' $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other firancing sources (uses) $0
Adjustments for revenue accruals : 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $0

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GRT REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 1993A
: DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Interest on investments $0 $0 $206 $206
EXPENDITURES
Paying agent fees 4,000 4,000 1,225 2,775
Bond interest 14,367 14,367 14,367 0
Bond principal 130,000 130,000 130,000 0
Tofal expenditures 148,367 148,367 145,592 2775
Excess (deficiency) of reventes over expenditures (148,367) (148,367) (145,386) 2,981
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 151,867 151,867 144,727 {7.140)
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 161,867 151,867 144,727 (7,140)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditureé and _
other financing sources (uses) $3,500 $3,600 {3659) {$4,159)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongiliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) ($658)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deﬂciencY) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$659)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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'CITY OF GRANTS
GRT REVENUE BOND RESERVE FUND 1993A
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET {(NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Interest $7.500 $7,500 $122 ($7,378)
EXPENDITURES
Management fees 500 500 0 500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 7,000 7,000 122 ' {6,878)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0
* QOperating transfers {out) {7,500) {7,500) (360) 7,140
Total other financing sources (uses) (7,500) {7,500) (360) 7,140
EXxcess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) {500) (500) ($238) $262
Budgeted cash carryover _ 500 500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recenciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) ($238)
Adjustments for revenue accruals : 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
_over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($238)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NMFA LOAN FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
" Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Interest/investment income $0 $0 $331 $331
EXPENDITURES
Principal 90,368 90,368 90,898 (5630)
Interest 32,519 32,519 22,838 9,681
Fees 3,000 3,000 8,084 {5,084)
Tolal expenditures 125,887 125,887 121,820 4,067
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {125,887). (125,887) (121,489) 4,398
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

- Loan proceeds - NMFA 0 0 0 0
Operating fransfers in 130,507 130,507 126,891 (3,616)
Operating transfers (ouf) 0 0 0 0

Total other financing sources (uses) 130,507 130,507 126,891 (3,616)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $4,620 $4,620 $5,402 ($4,024)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) , $6,402
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and cther financing uses (GAAP Basis) $5,402

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.




CITY OF GRANTS
NMFA RESERVE FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES _ .
Interest an investments ‘ . $5,000 $5,000 $55 ($4,945)
EXPENDITURES
Principal 0 0 0 0
Interest 0 0 0 0
Fees 0 0 0 0

Tofal expenditures 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 5,000 5,000 55 {4,945)
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers (out) {5,000) {5,000) (3,651) 1,349
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0 $0 ($3,596) {$3,596)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation;
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) {$3,596)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($3,596)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

TOTAL ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2011

Special Debt
Revenue Service Total
ASSETS
Cash $2,472,196 $131,760 $2,603,956
Cash held with trustee 0 506,052 506,052
Accounts receivable 60,285 0 60,285
Grant revenue receivable 61,891 0 61,891
Total assels $2,594,372 - $637,812 $3,232,184
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $66,812 50 $66,812
Accrued payroll 15,069 0 15,069
Due to other funds 31,176 0 31,176
Tolal liabilities 113,067 0 113,067
Fund Balances:
Restricted 1,801,126 637,812 2,438,938
Assigned 680,189 0 680,189
Total fund balances 2,481,315 637,812 3,119,127
Total liabilities and fund balances $2,594,372 $637,812 $3,232,184

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

TOTAL ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
. FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 '

Special Debt
Revenue Service Total
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $1,180,626 $0 $1,180,626
State shared and municipal taxes 124,122 0 124,122
Lodgers' tax 417,248 0 417,248
Fees 57,493 0 57,493
Investment income 5,776 714 6,490
Sales of property 11,480 0 11,480
Donations 1,170 0 1,170
Miscellaneous 10,671 0 10,671
Tolal revenyues 1,808,686 714 1,809,300
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 73,878 0 73,878
Public safety 186,814 0 186,814
Public works 613,064 0 613,064
Health and weifare 819,964 0 819,964
Culture and recreation 327,500 0 327,500
Capital ouflay 49,541 0 49 541
Debt Service:
Principal 0 220,898 220,898
Interest 0 37,205 37,205
Fees 0 9,309 9,309
Tolal expenditures 2,070,761 267,412 2,338,173
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditires (262,175) (266,698) (528,873)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 1,205,939 415,985 1,621,924
Operating transfers {(out) {429,789) (148,378) (678,167)
" Tofal ofher financing sources (uses) 776,150 267,607 1,043,757
Nef changes in fund balances 513,975 909 514,884
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,967,340 636,903 2,604,243
Fund balance, end of year $2,481,315 $637,812 $3,119,127

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
- capital facilities.

General Government Improvements Fund — Accounts for construction and improvement funds received from various
sources for the improvement of City properties.
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CITY OF GRANTS

GENERAL GOVERNMENT IMPROVEMENTS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental . $3,402,000 $3,402,000 $1,234,556 ($2,167,444)
Other 0 0 110,005 110,005
Rental revenue 6,000 6,000 16,838 10,838

Total revenues 3,408,000 3,408,000 1,361,389  (2,046,601)
EXPENDITURES
Current: _
Capital outlay 4,393,000 4,393,000 1,943,146 2,449 854

Total expenditures 4,393,000 4,393,000 1,943,146 - 2,449,854
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures {985,000) (985,000) (581,747) 403,253
Other Financing Sources (Uées): .
Operating transfers in 850,000 850,000 850,000 0
Operating transfers (out) ' 0 0 .0 0

Total other financing sources (uses) : 850,000 850,000 850,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
and other financing sotirces (uses) (135,000) (135,000)  $268,253 $403,253
Budgeted cash carryover 135,000 135,000

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses)

Adjustments for revenue accruals
Capital transfers out

Adjustments for expenditures accruals

$268,253
(734,225)
(706,382)

413,693

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

(3758,661)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Enfergrise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Golf Course Operating Fund — To account for the operation of the municipal golf course.

Home Program — A HUD-funrded program passed through the New Mexico Morlgage Finance Authority. The program is
designed to provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing for eligible low-income families and the elderly.

Low Rent— A direct HUD-funded program designed to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing and related facilities for
eligible low-income families and the ¢lderly through an authorized Public Housing Authority (PHA) or Indian Housing

Authority (IHA). o
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Home
Program Low Rent Tolal
ASSETS |
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $0 $54,640 $54,640
Investments 0 0 0
Accounts receivable tenants (net of allowance) 0 0 0
Accounts receivable 0 0 0
Interest receivable 0 0 0
Prepaid insurance 0 0 0
- Olher deferred charges 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 26,676 26,676
Tofal current assels 0 81,316 81,316
Capital Assets 0 1,194,192 1,194,192
Less accumulated depreciation 0 {608,574) (606,574)
Net capital assels 0 587,618 587,618
Total assets $0 - $668,934 $6608,934
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $6,082 $6,082
Accrued payroll 0 5,026 5,026
Due to other funds 0 0 0
Deferred revenue 0 0 0
Tenant security deposits 0 4,400 4,400
Tenants prepaid rent 0 249 249
Current portion of long-term debt 0 0 0
Total current liabilities 0 15,757 15,757
Non-Current Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 0 4,284 4,284
Leases payable - long-term portion 0 0 0
Total noncurrent liabilities 0 4,284 4,284
Total liabilities -0 20,041 20,041
Net Assets: :
Invested in capilal assets, net of related debt 0 587,618 587,618
Unrestricted 0 61,275 61,275
Tolal fund net assels ' 0 648,893 648,893
Total liabilities and fund net assets $0 $668,934

$668,934

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Home
Program Low Rent Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Rental income - $0 $71,797 $71,797
Total operaling revenues 0 71,797 71,797
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses 0 124,166 124,166
Depreciation 0 33,926 33,926
Total operaling expenses : 0 158,092 158,092
Operating income (loss) 0 (86,295) (86,295)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND (EXPENSES)
Federal grants and subsidies 0 15,648 15,648
Interest earnings 0 99 99
Other 0 5 5
Loss on asset disposals 0 (440) {440)
Total non-operaling revenue and (expenses) 0 15,312 15,312
Net income (loss) before contributions and transfers 0 (70,983) (70,983)
Operating transfers in ‘ 0 21,583 21,583
Operating transfers (out) (13,528) 0 (13,528)
Capital transfers in ‘ 0 112 112
Capital transfers (oul) ‘ (112) 0 - {112)
Change in net assels (13,640) {49,288) (62,928)
Total fund net assets, at beginning of year 13,640 698,181 711,821
Total fund nef assets, at end of year $0 $648,803 - $648,893

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Home
Program Low Rent Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers (including other funds) $0 $95,454 $95,454
Cash paid to suppliers {(173,993) (116,466) (290,459)
Cash paid to employees 0 (637) - (637)

Net cash provided (used) by operaling aclivities (173,993) (21,649) {195,642)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grants and subsidies 0 15,648 165,648
Advances (to) from other funds (32,939) 0 {32,939)
Transfers in (out) (13,528) 21,583 8,065
Non tenant income 0 - 5 5

Net cash provided (used)} by noncapital financing aclivifies (46,467) 37,236 (9,231)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment, net of trades 0 {(3,499) (3,499)
Disposition of assets 0 491 491
Lease proceeds 0 0 0
Capital transfers (in) out 0 0 0
Loss on asset disposal 0 (440) {440)
Principal paid: revenue bondsf/lease purchase/advances 0 0 0
Grants and subsidies 0 0 -0
Other income 0 0 0

Net cash provided (used) by capilal and related

financing aclivities ' 0 (3,448) (3,448)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 364 99 463

Net cash provided (used} by investing aclivities 364 08 463
Net increase (decrease) in cash (220,096) 12,238 (207,858)
Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year 220,096 42 402 262,498
Cash and restricted cash, end of year $0 $54,640 $54,640
Non Cash Transactions:
Capital assets transferred in (out) {$112) $112 $0

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-g7-



CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Home
Program Low Rant Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income {loss) $0 ($86,295) ($86,295)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation ' 0 33,926 33,926
Provision for uncollectible accounts 0 0 0
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivables 0 2,708 2,708
Due from/(to) other funds 0 20,949 20,949
Inventories 0 0 0
Prepaids and deposits 0 0 0
Increase {Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable {173,993) 4,472 (169,521)
Wages payable 0 2,621 2,621
Compensated absences 0 (105) {105)
Other defarred charges: Tenant deposits 0 (161) (161)
Tenants prepaid rent 0 236 236
Total adjustments (173,993) 64,646 {109,347}
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ($173,993) ($21,649) ($195,642)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

GOLF COURSE OPERATING FUND

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Criginal Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES ,
Golf course fees $275,000 $275,000 $298,385 $23,385
Rental income 0 -0 4,869 4,869
Qther 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 275,000 275,000 303,254 28,254
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 392,212 392,242 320,773 71,439
Operating 351,186 351,186 373,360 (22,174)
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total operating expenses 743,398 743,398 694,133 49,265
Operating income (loss) (468,398) (468,398) (390,879) 77,519
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Transfers in 398,000 398,000 398,000 0
Transfers (ouf) 0 0 0 0
Tolal non-operaling revenue (expenses) 398,000 398,000 398,000 0
Net income (loss) after transfers (70,398) (70,398) 57,121 $77,519
Budgeted cash carryover 70,398 70,398
$0 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Net income (loss) after transfers $7,121
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Capital transfers 0
Adjustments for expense accruals (134,981)
Net income (loss) (GAAP) Basis ($127,860)

The Nofes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
HOME PROGRAM
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget . Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Rental income : $
Interest on investments '
Miscellaneous income
Gain (loss) on sale of assets
Tofal revenues

B $

cloCc oo
SIoOoC o
(=] L= R e - B e
(] Fo B o - B o

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 0 0
Operating : 220,460 220,460

Tolal operaling expenses 220,460 220,460

0
220,460
220,460

[=] [= N =]

Operaling income (foss) ' ‘ (220,460) (220,460) $0 $220,460

Budgeted cash carryover 220,460 220,460

$0 $0

Note: Project Home - sale of housing units is not a budgeted program per HUD.

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Operating income (loss) $0
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0

Adjustments for expense accruals, depreciation and transfers {13,640)

Net income (loss) after transfers (GAAP) Basis ($13,640)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statéments.
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CITY OF GRANTS

LOW RENT

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP)} AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
: Budget Budget Aclual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Rental income $56,500 $56,500 $72.255 $15,765
Total revenues 58,500 56,500 72,255 15,758
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 78,000 78,000 77,187 813
Operating 28,000 28,000 40,186 {12,186)
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Tolal operaling expenses 106,000 106,000 117,373 (11,373)
Operating income (loss) (49,500) (49,500) {45,118) 4,382
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
HUD grants and subsidy 15,000 15,000 15,648 648
Interest 0 0 99 99
Other 0 0 {435) (435)
Transfers in 0 0 21,582 21,582
Total non-operaling revenue (expenses) 15,000 15,000 36,894 21,894
Nel income (loss) after non-operating revenue {34,500) (34,500} ($8,224) | $26,276
Budgeted cash carryover 34,500 34,500
$0 ~ $0
Note: The budget is used only as a guideline and is not required by HUD to be amended.
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongiliation:
Net income (loss) after non-operating revenue ($8,224)
Adjustments for revenue accruals (348)
Adjustments for expense accruals and depreciation (40,718)
Nst income (loss) (GAAP) Basis ($49,288)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
UTILITIES
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:

Net income $416,287
Adjustments for revenue accruals 6,204
Capital transfers in (out) - net 706,382
Adjustments for expense accruals (122,885)
Net income (GAAP) Basis $1,005,988

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-102-

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Refuse collection $1,537,000 $1,537,000 $1,594,395 $57,395
Water sales (net) 1,750,000 1,750,000 1,961,074 211,074
. Sewer charges 1,660,000 1,660,000 1,724,771 64,771
Total government tax 246,250 246,250 276,281 30,031
Other 33,000 33,000 112,279 79,279
Tolal revenues 5,226,250 5,226,250 5,668,800 442 6550
CPERATING EXPENSES
Public works 4,540,033 4,540,033 4,202,967 337,066
Capital outiay 835,000 835,000 58,011 776,989
Total operaling expenses 5,375,033 5,375,033 4,260,978 1,114,055
Operating income (loss) (148,783) (148,783) 1,407,822 1,566,605
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) -
Interest income 33,500 33,500 8,165 (25,335)
Transfers in 1,021,067 1,070,205 1,065,459 {4,746)
Transfers (out) (1,521,567) (1,523,620) (1,518,874) 4,746
Interest expense {87,049) {460,260) (71,505) 388,755
Principal payments (460,260) (87,049) (473,805) (386,756)
Debt service fees (5.000) {5,000) (975) 4,025
Total non-operaling revenueg (expenses) {1,019,309) (972,224) (991,535) (19,311)
Net income (loss) {1,168,092) (1,121,007} $416,287 $1,537,294
Budgeted cash carryover 1,168,002 1,121,007
30 30
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CITY OF GRANTS
AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Apency Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments, or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

Appearance Bond Fund — To account for collection and payments of Appearance Bonds from individuals arrested or cited
by City Police.

Senior Citizens — To account for funds raised by members of the City of Grants Senior Citizen Organization to be used by
and for Senior Citizen functions.
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CITY OF GRANTS
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance

June 30, 2010 Increase Decrease June 30, 2011
Appearance Bond Fund: -
Assets
Petty cash - $500 $0 $0 $500
Cash in bank 156,907 22,963 17,731 21,139
$16,407 $22,963 $17,731 $21,639
Liabilities :
Deposits held for others - $16,407 $22,963 $17,731 $21,639
Senior Activity Account:
Assets
Cash in bank $2,288 $1,602 $971 $2,919
Liabilities :
Funds held for Seniors $2,288 $1,602 $971 $2,919
Total Agency Funds:
Assets
Petty cash $500 $0 $0 $500
Cash in bank 18,195 24,565 18,702 24,058
Total assets $18,695 $24 565 $18,702 $24,558
Liabilities
Deposits held for others $18,695 $24,565 $18,702 $24,558

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Tolal Revenues
Eslimated and

Responsible Party Beginning and Amount of Contribution Audit Expendilures
Pariicipanls - for Operalions Descriptions Ending dates Project 6/30/2041 ~ Responsibility Reported on:
Cily of Grants NW New Mexico  Solid wasle disposal July 1, 2010 NW NM REV. NW NMSW
NW New Mexico Solid Waste services. June 30, 2011 N/A $70,249  Solid Wasle EXP: City of Granls
Solid Wasle Authority
Authority
City of Granls Village of Milan Operation of Public Transit ~ Seplember 1, 2006 NIA $24,605 Village of Milan REV.Village of Milan
Counfy of Cibola System and Lib. Sr. Anim
Village of Milan Conlinuing Cibola Counly

Cibola Transit Aulhority

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal
CFDA
Number Accrued or Accrued or
or {Deferred) {Delerred)
Agency Project Award Revenue ai Revenue at
Federal Granlor/Program Tille Prefix Number Amount June 30, 2010 Receipts Expendilures  June 30, 2011

LS. Department of Agriculture

Passed through State of New Mexico:
Passed through North Cenfral

New MexIco Economic Development District:

Asea Agency on Aging Conlract
Nulritional Service Incenlive Program 10.558 No. 2009-i0 §$32,015 $4,000 {$26,642) $24,703 $0

Total U.S. Depariment of Agricullire $32 015 $4,909 {$29,612) $24,703 30

1.8, Departmant ot Health and Human Servicas

Passed through Norlh Gentral

New Mexico Economlc Development District: .
Special Pregrams for the Aging Tille Il B 03.044 Conlract $40,342 $7,396 (345.416) $40,242 $2,322
Tille 1 G 93.045 No. 3 40,254 - 5,453 {42,522) 43,231 6,162

Tolal U.8. Department of Heallh and Himan Services $80,596 $12,849 {$87,938) $03,573 $8,484

L.S. Department of Houslng and

Urban Development
Passed through New Mexlco Department

of FInance and Administration
Gommunity Developmenl Bock Grani -

Johnson Strest 14.288 10-G-NR-1-01-G-23 $445,000 $1,755 30 $57,734 $66,489
Diract Funding:
Low Rent Public Housing Operaling

Subsidy - HousIng 14.850 NMO030-000001110 29,475 0 (15,648) 15,648 [
Section 8 Renlal Voucher Program -

Housing ) 14.871 366,408 0 (366,408) 366,408 0
Public Housing Capilal Fund 14.872 NMO02P030501-02 40,276 15,891 (11.937) 17,953 21,907
Capilal Fund Recovery Grant - ARRA 14.885 NMO25030501-09 51,010 0 0 0 0

Total U.S. Departmeni of Housing and
Urban Development $932,169 $17,6486 (§393,093) $457,743 $81,396

U.S. Departmenf of Justice
OHlce of Justice Programs
ARRA 16.579 2009-SB-BS-2118 $39,740 $0 $0 52,558 $2,659

Tolal U.S. Deparimen! of Justice $39,740 $0 30 $2,659 $2 559
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal
CFDA
Number Accrued or Accrued or
or (Deferred) {Deferred)
Agency . Projecl Award Revenua at Revenue at
Federal Grantor/Program Title . Prefix Number Amount June 30, 2010 Receipts Expendilures  June 30, 2011
U.S. Depariment of Transporialion
Alrport Improvement Project 20.106  3-35-0020-011-2009 $245,430 $23413 {$23,413) $0 30
Alrport Improvement Projecl (AWOS) 20106  3-35-0020-012-2010 212,847 0 (21,173} 23,124 1,048
Passed through the New Mexico Department
of Transportatfon
Federal Aviatlon Administration
Highway, Planning & Gonslruction Grant
ARRA - COOP Project - Nimilz 20.205 EC(-5953(1) 800,000 547,952 {780,516) 232,564 0
Total U.S. Department of Transporialion $1,268,277 $571,365 {$825,102) $255,685 $1,948
Tolal Federal Financlal Assistance $2,342,797 $606,769 {$1,336,645) $824,263 $94,387
Grant revenue receivable (page 12) ($125 887 less slate granl receivables of $31,500) $94,387
$94,387

N/A - Not Available
Basls of Presentallon:

The above schedule of expendilures of federal awards includes lhe federal granl aclivity of Cily of Grants and is presented on the accrual basis of accounling.

This information in this schedule is presenled in accordance wilh the requirements of OMB Circular A.133, "Audils of Siale, Local Governmenls, angd Non-Profil

Oiganlzations."

Therefore, some amounts presented in his schedule may differ from ameunls presented in, or used in the preparalion of, the basic financial statemenls.
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Housing Authority of the City of Grants
Financial Dala Schedule

6/30/2011
~ T B ; Low Rent Housing  |Public Housing| T
Line | Business ' Public Cholce Capital Fund
ltem # Account Descriplion Aclivilles Housing Vouchers Program Tolal

17 Cash - Unrestricled B k) 50,240 | 1725] 0| 51965
113 Cash - Other Restricted } 0 0 313,831 9 313,831

14 Cash - Tenanl Securily Deposils 0 4,400 0 0 4,400

100 Toial Cash _ o 54,640 315,556 0 370,196

121 "|Actounls Receivable - PHA Projects ) 0 0 0! 0
122 Dus from HUD - Olher Projects. 0 21,907 | 0/ 0 21,907

124 Accounis Recelvable - Other Governmenl 0. 0 o 9 0

125 Accounis Receivable - Miscellansous 0 0 0 0 0

126 Accounts Receivable - Tanants 0 0 [ 0 0

126.1 |Allowance for Doubtful Accts - Tenants o 0 0 ¢ 0 0

126.2 Allowance for Doubtiut Accts - Cther 0 0 0 0 0
120 Total Receivables, Nei of Allowance for Doubtfull Accls Q| 21,907 0 o 21,907

132 Inveslmenls - Reslricled - 0 0 0 0 0

142 __|Prepaid Expenses and Olher Assels B 0 . 0 o) 0 0

144 [nter Program Due From 0 4,769 0 o 4,769

150 Total Current Assels _ 0 81,316 315,556 0 396,872

161 itand - 0 46,724 o~ 0 46,724

162 Buildings o Y 1,456,340 | 0. [} 1,456,340

163 Furniture,Equip & Machinery - Dwellings i B 0 20,214 0 0 20,214

164 Furniture,Equip & Machinery - Adminisiralion : ol 23,157 ¢ 8,814 0 31,971
165 Leaseho!d Improvements L 01 38,356 | 0 0 38,356

166 = |Accumulated Depreclalion _ 0 {789,841) {8,814) 0. {798,655)
167 Construclion in Progress B 0 ] 0 0 0

168 _  |Infrastructure 0 0 0 0! 0

160 _ |Total Capilat Assels, Nst of Accumulated Deprec 0 794,950 0 0] 794,850

180 Total Non-Currenl Assels __ — 0 794,950 0 0 794.950_
—_——— . R | . ,

180 ‘Total Assels . ! ¢ 876,266 4 315,556 0 1,191,822

312 |Accounts Payable <= 90 Days o i 0 5,700 2,164 0 7.864

321 Accrued Wages/Payrolt Taxes Payable 0. ~ 5408 1,017 0 56425

322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion _ 0 2,136 851 0 2,987
i | Tenant Security Daposils 1] 4,400 o 0 4,400

342 Deferred Revenues - 0 249 0 0 249

347 _ |Inter Program - Due To o 0 0 4,769 0 4,769

310 ‘Total Current Liablliies B 0 17,893 8,801 0. 26,694

354 |Accrued Compensaled Absences - Non Current 0 2,148 890 0 3,038

350 Tokal Noncurrenl Liabilities 0 2,148 890 0 3,038

300~ |Total Liabitites  ~ . ] 0 20,041 9,691 0 29,732

508~ Total Convributed Capilal_ 6 0 o 0 0

508.1 Invested in Capital Assels, Nel of Related Debl B 0 794,950 | 0. 0 794,950
511 Totat Reserved Fund Balance - o 0 0 4 0

511.1___ |Restricted Net Assets i j ] 0] 304,140 o 304,140

5121 Unrestricled Net Assets =~~~ 0 61,275 . 1,725 0 63,000

513 Total Equily/Nef Assels 0 856,225 305,865 0 1,162,090

600 Tolal Liabilities and Equity/Nel Assels 0 876,266 375,556 | 0" 1191822

70300 |Nof Tenant Rental Revenue e 68,979 | Lo 0 68,979

70400 |Tenant Revenue - Other j | 0 . 0 0 0

70500 |Toial Tenant Revenus B L 0 68,979 | 0 0 68,979

| —
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Houslng Authorily of the City of Granls
Financial Data Schedule

6/30/2011

70600 'HUD PHA Operating Granls 0] 15,648 | 366,408 _ 10,698 392,755
70610 Capital Grants 0 0 0 7,253 7.253
71100 Investment Income - Unreslricied 0 99 1 0 100
71300 |Proceed from Disposilion of Assels Held for Sale 0 0 0 0. 0
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets 0] 0 0. 0 0
71400 Fraud Recovary 0 . 0 1.152 0 1,482
71500 |Other Revenus . } 0 2,823 0 0 2,823
71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capilial Assels 0 {440) (440)
72000 Investment Income - Restricted 0 261 0 261
70000 Tolal Revenue 0 87,109 367,822 17,952 472,883
S - I
91100 [Adminisirative Salaries B j 0 50,138 | 11,872 0 71,010
41200 Audiiing Fees 0 0! g 0 s
91300  |Management Fees - 0 0 _ 0 0 0
91500 Employaa Benofit Contribulions - Administralive _ o 15,300 3,068 | 0 _ 18,368
91600  'Olfice Expenses - 0 5,113 1,753 0] 12,866
91700 legal Expensss G« 0 0 0 o
91800  :Travel 0 5410 3.427 0 8,837
91900 Other - 0 5,202 5,589 0 10,791
91000 Total Operaling - Administration - 0! 90,163 31,709 0’ 121,872
92400 |Tenant Services - Other 0 0 0: 0 o
92500 Tolal Tenant Services 0 0 0 0 0
93100 [water - _ 0 1,669 0 0 1,569
93200 | Eeciricily _ 0 3,019 | 0 0 3,019
93300 Gas . N 0 776 0 0 776
93800 Other Ulililies Expense B o 0 0 0 0
93000 Total Utilities 0, 5,364 0 0 5,364

. ! i
94100 _ |Ordinary Mainl and Operations - Labor B 0 5,046 0, 0 5046
94200 Ordinary Mainl and Operations - Malerials 4Other 0 7,043 0 0 7,043
94300 Ordinary Mainl and Operalions - Contract Cosls X 0 10,181 0 9 10,181
64500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance 0 410 ¢ o 410
94000 [Total Maintenance 0 22,680 0 0 22,660
96110 Property Insurance - 0] 6.774 564 0 7,338
96130 Workmen's Compensalion . 0 2,137 0 2,137
96100 Tofal insurance Premiums o 0 8,911 564 0 9,475
96210 |Compensated Absences _ ] 0 {105)’ —(80) 0 _ {155)
98400  |Bad debl - Tenanis I Q 0 0 0
96000 Tolal Other General Expenses 0 (105) {50), 0. (159)
96900 Tofal Operating Expenses 0 127,013 32,223 0 159,236
I - i - !
96900 |Excess Operaling Revenue over Operating Expenses 0 {39.904) 335,599 17.952 313,647
. I - -
97300 'Housing Assislance Paymenls 0 i} o 251,544 0 251,544
97200 Casually Losses - Non-Capitalized L 0 {200) 0 0 {200}
97400 Deprecialion Expense B 0 66,943 o' 1,514 68,057
90000  |Total Expenses . B 0 . 193356 1 283,767 1,514 478,637
10010 _ 'Operaling Translers In _ . o 8,055 0 0 8,055
10020 Operating Transfers Qui 0 _ {8,055} 0! 0 {8,055}
10093 _ |Transfers between Project and Program - In ' _0 ¢ 0! 0 _ 0]
10094 Transfers between Project and Program - Qut 0 0 0 0 0
10100 1 Tolal Other FinancingSources (Uses) [ B 0 0 0 0
10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Rev Over (Under) Total Exg, 0 (108,247) 84,055 16,438 (5,754}
11030 |Beginning Equity B ; 13638 932,395 | 221,810 0. 1.167,843
11040 |Prior Period Adj, Equity Translers, Correclion of Errors_ | {13,638) 30,076 Y {16,438) o
11170 Administralive Fee Equily ; 0| 0 1,725 0 1,725
11180 Housing Assistance Paymenls Equity | 0 G 304,140 0. 304,140
11190 Unii Months Available _ L 240 | . 240
11210 |Number of Unit Months Leased 224 | 224
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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SE‘RVICEVSINCE 1062

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAY. REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDAN CE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Graats, New Mexico

We have audited the financial stafements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
the aggregate remaining fund information, the budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue
funds, and the combining and individual funds presented as supplemental information of the City of Grants as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2011. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contamed in Governmient Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the.

VUmted Stafes.

Internal_ Centrol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Grants® internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s infernal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an oplmon on the effectiveness of the City’s mtemal conirol over financial reporting,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a conirol does not aillow management or
employees, in the. normal course.of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the enhty 5 ﬁnanclal statements will not be prevented, or

detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal conirol over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.,
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Mr. Heclor H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

Page Two

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
-described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2008-04, 2010-02 and 2011-01.

The City’s responses to the findings indentified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on i,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the agency, City Council, the

State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, and applicable federal grantors, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

M-‘C [/ﬁ% Jbhace + Co, P.C.

Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.

November 30, 2011
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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1982

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
. CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

M, Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Granfs

Grants, New Mexico

Compliance

We have audited City of Grants® compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2011. City of Grants’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of City of
Grants’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Grants® compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with avditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we.plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about City of Grants’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, Our
audit does not provide a legal determination on City of Grants® compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, City of Grants complied in all material respects, with the requirements refetred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Interﬁal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Grants is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Clty of Grants® internal control over compliance with requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over -
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal conirol over

compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of infernal confrol over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in mternal control
over compliance that we consider fo be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, the

State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/QAe‘(/(‘( /ﬁaf Jbhaew «Co, P.C,

Kriepel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.

November 30, 2011
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of Auditor’s Report issued: Unqualified

Internal Conirol Over Financial Reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes

No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material _ :
weaknesses? X  Yes

No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material weakness{es) identified? Yes

No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes

No

Type of Auditor’s Report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with

section 510(a) of Circular A-1337 Yes -

No

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

14.872, 14.885 CFEP Cluster -

Highway Planning & Construclion Grant —

20.205 ARRA — Coop Project - Nimitz

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? : _ X Yes

No
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED. JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

2011-01 Budgeted Deficit — Significant Deficiency

Statement of Condition — The City budget exceeded the available projected revenues and cash carryover balances in the
tollowing fund:

Emergency Medical Services Fund $1,633

Criteria — According to 2.2.2.10 NMCA if budgeted expenditures exceed budgeted revenues then that amount must not
exceed the beginning of fiscal year cash.

Cause — Tnadequate monitoring of the City’s budgeting procedures.
FEffect — Potential for funds to over expend their resources resulting in unapproved loans from general fund.

Recommendation — Budget for future years should be revised to insure all funds have adequate projected revenues and
cash carryovers for appropriations. Greater attention should be given fo the budget monitoring process.

Management’s Response — The City revised the expenditure amount of $1,633.00 to adjust the budget amount. The

revenue amount of $1,633.00 was not adjusted. The City will properly review the EMS Fund in future years to prevent this
from occurring.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT STATUS ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS:

2010-01 City Check Cashed by Employee

Resolved and not repeated.

2010-02 Aundit Report Not Submitted Timely — Significant Deficiency

Repeated with modification.
Statement of Condition — The audit report for the year ended June 30, 2011 was not submitted timely.

Criteria — Audits of Municipalities.must be submitted by December 1 in accordance with the New Mexico State Audit
Rule 2.2.2. NMAC.

Cause — The auditor was unable fo complete and produce a quality report by the December 1, 2011 due date.
Effect — Noncompliance with New Mexico State Audit Rule 2.2.2. NMAC,
Recommendation — The timing of field work and report preparation should be revised to improve timeliness.

Management’s Response — We concur with Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.’s finding and recommendation.

2008-03 Terminated Emplovees Not Paid Within Five-Day Requirement

Resolved and not repeated.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT STATUS ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (CONTINUED):
NON-COMPLIANCE

2008-04 Budgeted Expenditures Exceeded — Significant Deficiency

Repeated with modification.

Statement of Condition - The Cily exceeded its budget in the Low Rent Program (by $11,373).

Criteria — The budget provisions as stated in 6-3-1 fo 6-3-25 NMSA 1978 require that expenditures at the fund level cannot
exceed budget expenditures and that budgeted expenditures cannot exceed resources (revenue plus beginning cash balance).

Cause - The Housing Authority, although a part of the City, budgets in accordance with HUD requirements, which uses a
budget only as a guideline. The City erred in their determination of beginning cash balance ($0) Capital Funds Program
which created a budgpeted deficit,

Effect — Noncompliance with New Mexico budgeting statues.

Recommendation — The City should adopt budgets and monitor and amend those budgets in accordance with New Mexico
State Statutes.

Management’s Response — The City will monitor more closely the Grants Housing Authority Budgets and make the
correct adjustments for future budgets.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION Ill - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -
MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT:

None.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS —
MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT:

None,
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CITY OF GRANTS
EXIT CONFERENCE
JUNE 30, 2011

EXIT CONFERENCE:

The exit conference was held November 17, 2011 and was attended by the following:

From City of Grants:
Joe Murrietta, Mayor

Bob Horacek, City Manager
Michelle Lucero, Systems Analyst.

From Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.:

Debbie Gray, CPA/Shareholder

FINANCTAL STATEMENTS PREPARATION

Preparation of financial statements is the responsibility of management. Although, the City of Grants’ personnel provided
significant assistance in the preparation, the statements and related footnotes were prepared by Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co.,
P.C.
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